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Message from the President
Welcome to The Landings Association’s 2014 Annual Report. It includes a summary of TLA activities, a report
from The Landings Company, and our audited financial statements. There is a lot of interesting information in the
report, and I encourage you to read it.
TLA had a very successful 2014, largely due to the efforts of our highly effective staff, led by General Manager/
COO Shari Haldeman. On behalf of the Board, I thank the staff for their great work during the year.
In 2014, we made significant progress on the Board priorities I outlined at 2014’s Annual Meeting.
Strategic Planning
In February 2015, we completed the Board’s work on TLA’s Strategic Plan. Randy Stolt and Shari Haldeman
led the planning effort, which included developing a planning model, assessing the competitive environment,
benchmarking The Landings against competing communities, obtaining input from Landings residents, and leading
two Board strategic planning retreats. Randy will report more details on the strategic plan at the 2015 Annual
Meeting.
Water
During the year, TLA and Utilities, Inc. participated in a group of permit holders drawing water from the
Floridan aquifer to discuss the allocation of expected reductions among users. While no final decisions have been
made, it appears that Utilities, Inc.’s allowed volume will be reduced by approximately 25% during the 2017-2027
permit period.
Under the leadership of Brenda Day, the Strategic Water Committee has examined methods for reducing the
amount of Floridan aquifer water we use. The alternatives that appear to have the greatest potential are conservation
and increased usage of shallow wells for irrigation purposes. We will keep you informed as further information
becomes available.
Renewal
Our future property values depend on maintaining a vibrant market for homes at The Landings. The current
market demands a supply of new or newly renovated homes, along with older homes. During the year, TLA
joined with The Landings Club and The Landings Company to form Vision 2020, a group tasked with promoting
and coordinating activities designed to improve our real estate inventory. We are also reviewing our Architectural
Guidelines and other rules to ensure that they support our owners desiring to improve their properties.
Covenants
In the summer of 2014, TLA members voted to adopt five amendments that modernize our Covenants and make
them consistent with the way we operate. You recently received a ballot to approve an additional amendment that
will improve compliance with our property maintenance standards and other rules. This is an important amendment
since the enforcement methods currently available are slow, expensive, and often ineffective. Please vote “Yes” on
this proposal and return your ballot as soon as possible.
We look forward to seeing you at our annual meeting on February 24, 2015 at 7 p.m. in the Plantation Ballroom.

John Fitzgibbon
2014 President
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The

Landings
Association,
established in August 1972, is a
nonprofit corporation formed to
promote the health, safety, and welfare
of the residents of The Landings on
Skidaway Island. Every person or
entity who is an owner of record in
any lot or living unit which is subject
to covenants of record is a member
of the corporation (Association). The
Landings Association owns, operates,
and maintains the common properties
and facilities, and provides security
services within the community.

General Manager’s Report
The year 2014 was marked by a strong focus on Covenants changes, strategic planning, technology enhancements, and improved physical
accessibility for all residents into Landings Association facilities. The pace of work necessarily increased in response to an improving economy. I
greatly appreciate the flexibility and adaptability demonstrated by the staff and volunteers who supported the Association during this dynamic year.
One of the most important governance initiatives continues to be the work required to update the Association’s 1972 Covenants. A major
milestone took place in early 2013 with a successful community vote to adopt the Property Owners’ Association Act. In August 2014, another
milestone was reached with the successful community vote to modify the Covenants as follows:
• Removed Developer Provisions and Identified Developer Rights and Duties Assumed by the Association
• Modified Covenants to Include Property Owners’ Association Act (POAA) Provisions
• Allowed Shallow Wells for Non-Potable Water
• Enabled Emergency Entry Into Private Property
• Defined Allowable Home Businesses
Work continued through the remainder of the year and into 2015 to finalize a proposed set of changes to address maintenance requirements
for private property and define due process requirements for compliance with legal documents. The process included discussion and review
with the community in Town Hall meetings; finalizing changes based on community feedback; preparing a voting packet for a referendum;
Block Captains coordination; and a strong get-out-the-vote campaign, currently underway.
In May 2014, the Board of Directors approved a new Strategic Planning process that provides a system by which the Association can
successfully plan for the future while taking into consideration TLA’s unique needs. This new process provides a system that focuses proactive
effort on the most critical issues that may affect our future and enables us to sustain focus on these throughout changing governance cycles.
The Strategic Planning process began immediately following Board approval. Substantial staff work was dedicated to gathering and analyzing
data to help identify TLA’s major objectives and goals for the future, and focus groups were held with various segments of the community to
inform the data collected.The Board and senior staff developed Strategic Plan Objectives and Goals, and significant work will continue on the
plan development in advance of the fall 2015 Three-Year Assessment Vote of all property owners.
The Objectives are as follows:
• ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY/STEWARDSHIP: Create and promote an environmentally sustainable community that
encourages responsible enjoyment of our natural resources.
• HOUSING: Facilitate a fresh, diverse selection of housing for people at every stage of life who desire the “Landings Lifestyle”.
• TECHNOLOGY: Research and leverage cutting edge technologies to enhance the safety, security, and quality of life for our residents.
• AMENITIES, ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS, SERVICES: Develop and deliver an expanded array of amenities and services that
complement those offered by the Club and promote an active lifestyle, create a strong sense of community, and are valued by our current
and future residents.
• GOVERNANCE AND DECISION MAKING: Build and implement partnerships and leadership strategies with major stakeholders
that will ensure the future success of The Landings.
The Association staff met the challenge of increased demands represented by an improving economic environment, most notably in our
Community Development Department. We had appropriately downsized the staffing from four to 1.5 employees in response to the recession
in 2008. Over the past three years, all permit activity has continued to grow each year. Notably, the nine new home construction permits
in 2012 increased to 26 in 2013 and to 34 in 2014. The associated inspections conducted by staff for all permits during 2014 totaled 2,492.
Likewise, increased gate activity was experienced, as the commercial vehicle registration and daily pass sales began to rebound. While still
substantially lower than pre-2008, revenues totaled $770,339 in 2014.
All Association facilities were evaluated for accessibility to accommodate residents with limited mobility, and a work plan for improvements was
implemented. The 27-year-old TLA Administration Building received a renovation that improved accessibility, customer service, and functionality.
Upgrades for improved accessibility were also completed in the Athletic Field restrooms, with installation of a ramp and appropriate fixtures.
Installation of a lift for the Delegal Sunset Pavilion was initiated toward the end of 2014 and will be operational shortly.
Technology improvements to enhance operations and customer service were well underway at the end of 2014. Our internal database
is being transitioned to a new vendor and includes new access management software that will enable residents to use an “app” with smart
phones and iPads to pre-authorized guests and vendors. Twenty-one of TLA’s 52 video cameras were replaced with higher megapixel cameras,
resulting in higher resolution image quality. New cameras were also installed at the Delegal Sunset Pavilion and the Storage Yard. Staff across
departments were trained in the use of our Geographic Information System (GIS) database and worked on expansion of the system, which
includes streets, storm drains, trails and paths, bridges, and TLA buildings. Our ultimate goal is to enable residents to quickly report locationbased maintenance issues, hazards, or problems requiring our immediate attention.
We welcomed Beth Lanier as our new HR/Organizational Development Director and Rory Jose as our new Marinas Manager during the
year. Both bring high levels of professional experience to the Association.
This report contains departmental summaries of the progress made in 2014 to provide improved services to the community. Our numerous
volunteers serving on Association committees once again partnered with the staff, providing substantial perspective, support, and expertise
throughout the organization that is greatly appreciated.
Shari Haldeman
General Manager/COO
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2014 Committees
EXECUTIVE
John Fitzgibbon, President
Randy Stolt, Vice President
Nancy Pavey, Treasurer
Brenda Day, Secretary
FINANCE & AUDIT
Nancy Pavey, Chair
Neil Bader
Rita Butler
Jim Rich
Wim Salien
Beth Tarjan, TLCo Liaison
Jim Overton, TLC Liaison
Karl Stephens, Staff Liaison
Judy Spooner, Staff Liaison
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
GOVERNANCE
Randy Stolt, Chair
Neil Bader
Jerry Beets
Rex Templeton, Jr.
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
COVENANTS
John Fitzgibbon, Chair
Neil Bader
Chuck Beck
Rita Butler
Anita Clos
Joyce Conant
Joyce Glenn
Hank Policinski
Chris Savage
Randy Stolt
Mal Welch
Ben Wright
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
Karl Stephens, Staff Liaison
STRATEGIC PLANNING
Randy Stolt, Chair
Jerry Beets
Brenda Day
Nancy Pavey
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
STRATEGIC WATER
Brenda Day, Chair
Neil Bader

Terry Breyman
Bill Foster, Sr.
Gary Herrman
Jim Orr
Jim Overton
George Sedberry
Rex Templeton, Jr.
Steven Freund, TLC Liaison
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
Paul Kurilla, Staff Liaison
WATER RATE COMMITTEE
Gary Herrman, Chair
Randy Stolt
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
Karl Stephens, Staff Liaison

REGULATORY
COMMITTEE
ARCHITECTURAL
REVIEW
Bill Haeger, Chair
Charles Arraiz
Walt Bazemore
Deborah Chiles
Bob Fischer
Paul Henderson
Don Lieb
Noel Ruppert
John Fishburne, Board Liaison
Paul Kurilla, Staff Liaison
STANDING COMMITTEES
COMMUNICATIONS
Joyce Glenn, Chair
Michael Auen
Anita Clos
Joyce Conant
Alex Harwood
John Kosiewicz
Chris Savage
Don Schoenwald
Rosemary Longueira, TLCo
Liaison
Brenda Day, Board Liaison
Karl Stephens, Staff Liaison
Lynn Lewis, Staff Liaison

DEVELOPMENT
Hal Duensing, Chair
Tim Andrews
Brenda Bearden
Dick Hughey
Marilyn Ratliff
John Szlasa
Peggy Utley
Karl Vittery
Rex Templeton, Jr., Board
Liaison
Paul Kurilla, Staff Liaison
MARINAS
Jamie Chisolm, Chair
David Angell
Denise Cunningham
Diane Gustafson
George (Pat) Howard
Mark Piven
Victor Vaccaro
Jerry Beets, Board Liaison
Rory Jose, Staff Liaison
PUBLIC WORKS
Bob Egan, Chair
Blake Caldwell
Richard Cunningham
Bill Foster, Sr.
David Grosse
Kathy Siler
Ronald Weber
Rich Hackett, CCA Liaison
Jerry Beets, Board Liaison
Paul Kurilla, Staff Liaison
SECURITY
Robert Turner, Chair
Joe Grispo
George Jorgenson
Russell Liedtke
Lars Ljungdahl
Robert Longueira
Roger Lundin
Chris Savage
Don Schoenwald
Rex Templeton, Jr., Board
Liaison
Tim Cook, Staff Liaison

SPECIAL COMMITTEES
BRIDGE
Bill Foster, Sr.
Bill Merz
Russ Peterson
Howard Stryker
Paul Kurilla, Staff Liaison
Karl Stephens, Staff Liaison
DOG PARK
Blake Caldwell, Chair
Joyce Eddy
Constance Goodwin
Doug Rangeley
Beth Roth
Ingrid Poppell, Staff Liaison
INSURANCE
Jack Coderre
Don Lieb
Kent Urness
Mike Walters
Karl Stephens, Staff Liaison
Shari Haldeman, Staff Liaison
WATER CONSERVATION
Chuck Hartman, SkIO
Holly Holdsworth, State Park
Ron Medders, Utilities, Inc.
Steven Freund, TLC
Val Stolt, Skidaway Audubon
Weldon Streett, The Marshes
Jan Wright, Landlovers
Sean Burgess, Staff Liaison
NEIGHBORS HELPING
NEIGHBORS
Jean Lamphere
Don McCulloch
Jim Owen
Mary Stewart
Caryl Warner

6

Community Development
Community Development Mission Statement
The mission of the Community Development Department is to strengthen the long-term competitive position of The Landings by
maintaining, protecting, and improving a fundamental community asset -- our quality housing stock. The Department consists of the
following programs: Architecture and Development. Each program area fulfills a specific role to support the strategic objectives of the
Department; to ensure adherence to and consistency with the architectural standards of The Landings and compliance with the General
Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions of The Landings Association; and to support reinvestment in private property.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Architectural Review
The Architectural Review Committee maintained its schedule of two meetings per month, which creates a more
efficient and effective turnaround time from permit application to formal approvals and Chatham County Permits.
Pre-review meetings with residents, consultants, and contractors were promoted and encouraged in order to identify
alternatives to potential problem areas and increased chances of first-pass success. In 2014, staff transitioned all
contracted landscape services from a consulting architect to the Association’s Environmental Resources Manager in
an effort to improve turnaround time and customer service. The Department was able to maintain 1.5 staffing levels
while reviewing, processing, and approving an unusually high 653 permits over the calendar year.
Community Development
Twenty-seven vacant lots were developed in 2014. Twenty-five home sites remain under construction and are
expected to be completed in 2015. The 653 permits issued in 2014 required 2,492 inspections to promote compliance
with approved plans and Architectural Guidelines.
Improved Communications & Customer Service
The 2014 focus areas included continued attention on operational efficiencies and streamlining the existing
permit process. To accomplish these goals, staff streamlined the permit process for dumpsters, re-roofing projects,
and repainting. All permit documents were updated to improve ease of use and convenience. Additionally, staff, in
conjunction with the Architectural Review Committee, conducted an internal review of all Architectural Guidelines
and supplements and adopted all changes with the exception of sustainability and redevelopment. The review of
the remaining two items will be completed in 2015 and incorporated into the existing Guidelines.

2015 EXPECTATIONS
Architectural Review
The Architectural Review Committee will maintain its schedule of two meetings per month, which creates a more
efficient and effective turnaround time from permit application to formal approvals and Chatham County Permits.
Pre-review meetings with residents, consultants, and contractors will continue to be promoted and encouraged in
order to identify alternatives to potential problem areas and increased chances of first-pass success. In 2015, staff and
consultants will be creating new Guidelines for sustainability and the increased redevelopment of existing homes.
This, in conjunction with the 2014 revisions, will conclude the project. An enhanced communication plan will be
implemented to promote improved customer service for owners, prospective buyers, realtors, and contractors.
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Community Development
Staffing Levels
Based on the sustained increase in permits and building, the Community Development Department will increase
staffing by one full time equivalent, which will allow us to maintain an expected level of customer service with an
excess of 650 permits.
Community Development
It is estimated that 35 new homes will be completed within the community in 2015, and 2,700 construction
inspections will be required for promoting compliance with the approved plans and Architectural Guidelines.
Training, Education, and Outreach
With increased staffing, the Department will expand efforts and initiatives to enhance education, training, and
outreach. Community outreach will be accomplished through staff initiatives such as educational seminars, a home
renovation expo, quarterly PRIDE awards, newsletter articles, and personal consultation.

STATISTICS
Total Lots
Total Homes Completed
Number of Reviews / Permits Issued:
• New Home Construction
• Additions/Alteration to Existing Homes
• Dumpsters/PODs/Land Clearing

2014		
2013
4,420		4,420
4,113		N/A
34		25		
525		404
94		174
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Community Relations
Community Relations Mission Statement
The mission of the Community Relations Department is to provide timely information and services, mainly to external customers,
while also providing and servicing the information technology backbone for The Landings Association. The Department consists of the
Communications Program, the Information Services Center Program, and the Information Technology Program.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Community Communications
Ad sales have continued to increase for our monthly Landings Journal newsletter, largely offsetting its production
and distribution costs.
We continued our push to increase the number of our Email Bulletin subscribers. We now have at least one email
address for 86% of our owners (vs. 81% to start 2013). This effort will continue in 2015.
We continued to make targeted use of the Association’s Facebook and Twitter accounts, with plans to continue
the same in 2015.
Community Communications supported the creation of the successful 2014 Covenants Modernization Vote.
In 2014, electronic message boards were installed at four gates, replacing the previous, manually-updated boards.
These electronic boards allow multiple community groups to reserve space each day, as well as allow for the timelier
display of information. The Information Services Center is responsible for scheduling and inputting such messages.
Community Events
Special events organized or assisted by the Department include the annual LandingsFest on the Green, Landings
Night with the Sand Gnats, bi-weekly Marina Cookouts during the season, and Town Hall Meetings, including
several related to the 2014 and 2015 Covenants Modernization Votes, as well as the Association’s Annual Meeting
and a Hurricane Town Hall Meeting. Such events foster community camaraderie and fellowship while establishing
an atmosphere where residents can familiarize themselves with The Landings Association and its amenities and
services. Sponsorships help defray the production costs of some of these events, and we will work to gain additional
sponsors in 2015.
Community Relations
The Department coordinates governmental outreach, such as an Annual Landings Roundtable, as well as other
meetings and encounters with elected and appointed officials, including such activities as Chamber of Commerce
functions. This outreach helps The Landings when support from elected or appointed officials is required, and also
promotes the community in the regional public eye for community goodwill and marketing.
In 2013, we partnered with The Landings Club and The Landings Company to restart the New Owner
Receptions. These were well attended and received very positive responses. These events continued in 2014 with
three events held. We plan to hold another three-to-four such events in 2015.
Information Technology
In the summer and fall of 2013, we began exploring moving our internal database to a new vendor, which also
would allow such functions as an “app” for residents to schedule guest passes. This transition began toward the end
of 2014, and is scheduled to be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2015.
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Community Relations
Bridge and Road Project
The Bridge Committee continued to monitor the removal of the Skidaway Island drawbridge, as well as the
widening of Whitefield Avenue, both of which were scheduled to be completed in 2014. However, the bridge
removal project has continued into 2015.

2015 EXPECTATIONS
Community Communications
In 2015, support will be provided for the 2015 Covenants Modernization education campaign and vote, as well
as for the Three-Year Annual Assessment Vote.
We plan to make more use of our YouTube channel in 2015, including creating instructional videos for our new
database and guest pass app, to demonstrate visually how to interact with these new programs.
Community Events
Starting in 2015, The Landings Association will take on the responsibility of registering all golf carts within The
Landings. As part of that, multiple sign-up events will be conducted. This Department will assist with the publicity,
staffing of events, and registrations itself.
IT Upgrades
We will review the Association’s website for a more seamless integration with our new database, and explore the
possibility of transitioning to a new website provider to ensure the best, most effective user experience possible,
within budget. As part of that effort, a website subcommittee of the Communications Committee will be created.
We also plan to increase our usage of our Geographic Information System (GIS) software, to help us graphically
view data and respond in a more effective manner.

STATISTICS
Percent of Owners with Email on File
Association E-Mail Bulletins Distributed
Facebook Posts
Tweets
Barcodes Processed
Percent Board Election Turnout

2014		
2013
86%
85%
205		235
61		92
36		54
5,381		4,095
44%		49%
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Finance
Finance Mission Statement
The mission of the Finance Department is to manage prudently The Landings Association’s financial resources, safeguarding
assets; to assure compliance with applicable laws and policies governing financial transactions; to research and provide sound investment
strategies; to build strong financial relationships; to provide superior customer service; and to provide timely and accurate information
about The Landings Association’s financial position, including technical support. The major programs provided are Accounting and
Assessments Collection, Financial Management and Reporting, and Insurance and Risk Management.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Billing
On an annual basis, 4,420 Assessment statements are sent to property owners in January. In addition, we
process more than 500 electronic ACH bank payments each quarter for those owners who chose the quarterly
payment plan. On a monthly basis, the Department generates the following invoices: Marina monthly storage
and sales statements, Service Agreement statements to the Club, Landings Journal advertiser statements, resident
mailbox/gate repair statements, and miscellaneous vendor repair invoices. In 2014, we completed the transition to
electronic statements for all marina charges. Each year, the Finance Department must write off a portion of Annual
Assessments that we deem as “uncollectable”. However, the Finance Department continues the collection process,
even on prior-year bad debts.
Accounting
The Department is responsible for auditing and depositing daily cash receipts from the reception desk, security
gate, and marina activities. These include vehicle and Dog Park registrations, which average $1,800/day; daily pass
fees, which average $900/day from the North Gate; and retail operations at the Marinas, which average $500/day,
including gas sales.
Invoices that receive the proper authorizations through our purchase order program are paid within 14 days.
Checks, direct debit, and credit card payments equating to $150,000 are issued bi-weekly.
Payroll is administered in-house, which equates to approximately 75 paychecks every two weeks, totaling about
$99,000. To streamline the process further, all employees now are on direct deposit. In 2014, new software was
added to provide individual online access to payroll and benefit information to each Association employee. The
401k program for the Association is administered each paycheck by the Finance Department, and reports are
produced annually to meet Internal Revenue and Department of Labor guidelines. Other employee benefits such as
health, dental, and life insurance are paid by the Finance Department based on information received from the HR
Department.
The Department maintains and depreciates a ledger containing more than 600 personal assets, worth a net book
value of more than $5,200,000. Personal assets are items over $1,000 that can be depreciated and resold by the
Association.
In 2014, the Administrative Office was renovated to provide better service to our residents and vendors. During
this four-month period, staff were relocated on several occasions. All departments remained open and fully
functioning during this time period. Our financial software (Microsoft Great Plains) also received an update in 2014.
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Finance
Financial Management
This function provides information to the staff, committees, and Board on financial policy, financial management,
reporting, and other matters affecting the short- and long-term financial condition of the Association. The
Department continued to provide support to staff for the annual operational and capital budgets. The Department
continued to invest available funds in accordance with Board policy. The accuracy of the Association’s financial
statements for 2014 was tested during an annual external audit conducted by an independent CPA firm. This audit
resulted in an unqualified opinion, no reportable conditions, and no material recommendations.
Insurance and Risk Management
This program acquired insurance for those areas of operation and assets in which the Association’s risk control
techniques do not adequately cover losses the Board is not willing to assume. Risk control techniques include exposure
avoidance, loss prevention, loss reduction, segregation of exposures, and contractual transfer. This is accomplished
by understanding the value of the Association’s assets by conducting periodic appraisals; understanding the areas
of potential exposure; having general knowledge of the insurance market; monitoring losses; and holding training
sessions. The Department is assisted in this by our Insurance Committee.

2015 EXPECTATIONS
The Finance Department is researching software to provide residents the ability to view their Association or
Marina statements online while also offering the ability to make an online payment. We also will continue to work in
conjunction with the Security Department to integrate the new access software (ABDi) with our financial software
for a smooth transition. As in prior years, we will continue the ongoing review of all policies and procedures to
determine what changes, if any, to implement.

STATISTICS
Payable Checks Produced
Payment Checks/ACH/Cash Deposits Processed
Property Transfers Processed

2014		
2013
3,644 		4,127
11,225		11,458
372 		305
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Human Resources / Organizational Effectiveness
Human Resources/Organizational Effectiveness Mission Statement
The primary mission of the Human Resources and Organizational Effectiveness Department is two-fold:
1. To design and implement organizational systems, structures, and processes that increase the effectiveness and efficiency of
each individual and the organization as a whole.
2. To build and encourage a culture that inspires employees to be their best, give their best, and lead others to do the same.
This mission is accomplished primarily through an integrated approach to acquiring, growing, and retaining TLA talent with
focused work in the following areas: Talent Acquisition and Integration, Talent/Organizational Development, Talent Retention and
Workplace Culture, and Total Compensation.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Talent Acquisition and Integration
Total (12-month rolling average) turnover for the Association for 2014 was 21% (representing 18 fulltime
departures in 2014). Nine of the departures were resignations, seven were terminations, and two were retirements.
Our goal for 2014 was to keep total turnover below 18%, with uncontrollable turnover below 15% and regrettable
turnover below 3%. These results did not hit our total turnover goal, but were below our 2013 total result of 27%.
We will continue to focus on this area in 2015.
During the year, The Landings Association hired 15 fulltime employees, with 87% beginning work in less than 60
days from the opening of the position. (Average time to fill was 34 days.) These hires included a Marinas Manager,
Construction Manager, and a Human Resources Director.
Talent/Organizational Development
Our employees must meet specific training/development requirements in order to receive a related portion of
their bonus. This has encouraged employees to improve their technical and non-technical skills. Onsite computer
training on Microsoft Office applications was provided mid-year to a cross-section of employees. In addition,
employees were able to take advantage of training on customer service, conflict management, personal finance, and
constructive communication through our Employee Assistance Program provider.
In 2014, we began updating the succession plans that were developed in 2013. Identified individual and
organizational developmental needs will be incorporated into individual development goals as part of the
performance management process update for 2015.
Talent Retention and Workplace Culture
The purpose of this area is to ensure a work environment that communicates -- in every interaction -- our
Vision and Values through experience rather than words. In the first quarter of 2014, a cross-functional employee
session was held to review progress toward our desired culture. Opportunities for improvement were identified for
continued focus and follow-up. As TLA moves into early 2015 and the final stages of its Strategic Plan process
implementation, we will address these areas in a new series of employee learning sessions on personal leadership
and its impact on TLA’s culture and performance.
Landings Association employees continue to focus on creating a culture of high performance, emphasizing
organizational values of employee imitative, ownership, and accountability throughout the organization. Crossfunctional teams of employees at all levels of the organization led efforts in areas such as safety, wellness, and events
planning. The Food and Beverage team organized and prepared for nine cookouts at Delegal and Landings Harbor,
five of which were cancelled at the last minute due to inclement weather. This team also helped with HarborFest
and the annual LandingsFest on the Green.
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Human Resources / Organizational Effectiveness
Total Compensation
Monitoring of our retirement plan and all other benefits continues to indicate that the Association is competitive
within the Savannah market. Currently, 88% of all eligible employees participate in our 401(k) plan, and 80% of
eligible employees participate in our medical insurance plan. Our relationship with Fidelity (401k) and Seacrest
Partners (started 2011) continues to be strong. The Landings Association moved to Blue Cross Blue Shield in 2012,
and our renewal plan options and rates continue to be very good. As a result, the Association has been able to
maintain good quality coverage for our employees at reasonable rates. The Landings Company’s employees continue
to be a part of the plan for 2015. (The Company and its employees pay the cost for their health plans.)
In 2014, we participated in two regional gated community salary surveys. We also monitored local competitor
organizations as part of a comprehensive review of the Association’s employee pay. Largely, Landings Association
compensation competes well with other similar community associations as well as government agencies. Identified
adjustments that are needed will be accounted for in the 2015 salary planning process.

2015 EXPECTATIONS
Talent Acquisition and Integration
In 2015, HR will continue its move toward greater utilization of technology to reduce time to fill positions and
increase candidate pools. In addition, we will focus on development of orientation modules that focus on longerterm integration of new employees to ensure early engagement and quality training, as well as optimize TLA’s
opportunity to critique its practices through “new sets of eyes”.
Talent/Organizational Development
During 2015, continued emphasis will be placed on supervisor and employee training and development, including
implementation of the individual development plans created as a result of succession planning. As we identify
training needs, we will provide more onsite training to increase employee development opportunities while reducing
overall costs.
Talent Retention and Workplace Culture
We will continue to focus on driving a culture of high performance, personal ownership and accountability, and
customer satisfaction through a new series of employee learning sessions on personal leadership and its impact
on TLA’s culture and performance. This comes in conjunction with anticipated changes to TLA’s performance
management processes as we work to ensure appropriate alignment between department and individual goals and
the strategic direction of the organization. We also will continue the use of employee teams to drive operational
initiatives and instill a culture that encourages high ethical standards, civil treatment, and minimal legal risks.
Total Compensation
We will continue to evaluate our time off, compensation, benefits, and retirement plans to ensure that our total
compensation package including systems, structures, and practices, position us to attract and retain the highestquality employees possible.

STATISTICS
Total Landings Association Employees
Employees Hired

2014		
2013
70.5		70
15		16
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Marinas Mission Statement
The mission of the Marinas Department is to provide and promote boating and waterfront activities within The Landings by
operating and maintaining two marinas -- Landings Harbor and Delegal Creek. The Department provides permanent and transient
storage options through wet slips and dry rack storage as well as Jet Ski and kayak storage, a Sailing Program, retail store operation,
transient boat services, and marine repair services provided through Dolan Yacht Services. User fees and sales of goods and services
provide the revenue to fund the Marina operations.

2014 Highlights
The following highlights some of the results in 2014 in managing revenues and spending while continuing to
provide and improve established service levels.
Increased Guest Boat Traffic
The location of Delegal Creek Marina makes it an attractive alternative to transient boaters traveling the
Intracoastal Waterway. In addition to the revenue added to Marina operations, Delegal serves as a unique marketing
tool for potential property owners. In 2014, increased marketing and excellent customer service increased transient
business at Delegal Creek Marina. Delegal provided overnight dockage to boaters from all over the world, but three
locations -- Florida (38%), Maryland (15%), and Georgia (14%) -- drew the most transient traffic in 2014.
When asked how they discovered Delegal Creek Marina, boaters most common answers were Returning Guests
(40%), Residents and Friends (18%), and Dozier’s Waterway Guide (16%). Dozier’s Waterway Guide remains the most
popular printed navigation resource among boaters traveling around the United States. The Landings Association
places an ad in the Waterway Guide publication every year. The Active Captain website is a free site that many boaters
have come to rely on for the most current and up-to-date information about an area. In 2014, the marina received
11 reviews on Active Captain, with nine being 5 stars and two being 4 stars. These excellent reviews help to explain
the increase of 117 transients in 2014 versus 101 in 2013, 40% of which were returning guests.
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These excellent reviews help to explain the increase of 117 transients in 2014 versus 101 in
2013, 40% of which were returning guests.
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Facility Upgrades
The Landings Association and Marinas staff focused on continuing improvements for the Marinas. Two channel
markers were repositioned in 2014 and anchored with new concrete mooring blocks. These private aids to navigation
guide boaters safely into Delegal Creek. Marina staff painted the Landings Harbor Ship Store and Harbor Master’s
Office at Delegal. A new forklift was also ordered in 2014 and will be delivered in 2015.
Marina Events and Programs
A focus on increasing events and activities at the Marinas continued in 2014. The Sunset Cruise program was
expanded in response to residents’ interest. A total of 499 people participated in the Sunset Cruises, while another 104
residents explored three other cruises -- a Circumnavigation, Eco Dolphin, and Ossabaw Island Excursion.
The Marinas sponsored a fishing seminar, hosted by Captain Jack McGowan, to demonstrate and promote lagoon
and pier fishing. Approximately 30 residents and children attended and expressed interest in offering more of these
opportunities. It is our goal in 2015 to partner with Captain Jack and CCA of Georgia to present more seminars and
fishing tournaments.
The second annual HarborFest event was held in April at Landings Harbor. Approximately 1,000 people enjoyed
live music, barbeque, and a Low Country boil. Children participated in the pirates costume parade and enjoyed the
bouncy castle slides, face painting, a hula hoop contest, and games with prizes. The Rhodes 19 sailing crew and
Carefree Boating at The Landings offered boat rides.
All but one Sunset at the Harbor events were cancelled in 2014 due to inclement weather. Delegal’s Weekend on
the Waterfront event was not held in 2014, but we plan to hold it in 2015.
Increased Marketing
• In 2014, the Marinas participated in the Savannah Boat show, and shared space with The Landings Company
and The Landings Club at the Annapolis Boat Show. The efforts of these events are reflected in the increased
number of transient boaters and will continue in 2015.
• The Marinas donated storage space to the local CCA chapter auctions. These donations enabled us to promote
the Marinas to a captive audience of boating enthusiasts while assisting in the protection of our local water’s
ecosystem.
• The focus in 2014 has been to address the difficult channel conditions within Ossabaw Sound and at the
entrance to Delegal Creek, which have created a negative reputation for that marina. Channel conditions within
Delegal Creek have continued to improve over time, with a shift in a longstanding shoal away from the channel
and marker replacements. Efforts to contact NOAA will be made in 2015 to discuss if the electronic charts in
their database can be updated. The recent bathymetric survey has confirmed there is a navigable passageway,
and this will be broadcast on all media outlets.
Marine Repair Service
The outsourced Marine Services Center continues to be operated by Phil Dolan Yacht Services. A new lease was
negotiated in December that included an increase of approximately 50%. Having an onsite repair service is a point
of separation from our competitors and thus will continue to be highlighted in our marketing efforts for 2015. The
Marinas will continue to work in conjunction with Dolan Yacht Services to attract non-resident boaters to The
Landings and retain them as permanent customers of the Marinas.
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Sailing Program
The primary goal of this program is to allow residents to learn to sail in a supportive environment and to sail
without having to own a sailboat. The Marinas own eight Rhodes 19 sailboats for this purpose and charge participants
a monthly fee. The sailing team participated in two regattas in 2014 -- a national competition at the Hingham Yachts
Club in Massachusetts and another at the Savannah Yacht Club. They also race weekends to promote camaraderie
among participants and offer sailing options to residents interested in sailing. Membership in the sailing program
varies seasonally and consistently has generated revenue in excess of program expenses, allowing for periodic repair
and replacements of the vessels. The program is fully managed by its members, who also handle much of the required
maintenance.

2015 Expectations
In 2013, a major milestone was achieved by the Board of Directors to “Define the future state of Delegal and
Landings Harbor Marinas and develop multi-year plans to work towards achieving the vision, all considering a
broad consensus of the community and fiscal responsibility”. Following completion of an extensive eight-month
study of the Marinas, evaluating various operating models, the Board approved a long range plan to utilize best our
two key waterfront amenities.
• Changing market trends in the boating industry indicate that Landings Harbor requires upgrades to increase its
market share and profitability. A new forklift with greater capacity was ordered in 2014, with delivery expected
early 2015. The new lift will be able to lift larger boats, which is where experts say the market is heading. Since
the new lift will have a negative lift capacity, Landings Harbor no longer will need the elevator. The elevator will
be sold, and a marine contractor will extend the bulkhead to mirror the other bulkhead.
• The Site and Circulation Study will be finalized, and design plans will be drawn up for a new dry rack system.
Construction for this project is scheduled for 2016. Along with the rack reconstruction, the floating docks
at the Harbor will be replaced, starting at the end of 2015. Approximately half of the floating docks will
be replaced in 2015, and the remaining docks will be installed in 2016. Close attention will be given to the
southeast corner of the basin.
• Effective January 1, 2015, electrical rates were increased at both marinas. Thirty amp service increased from $30
to $40/month, and 50 amp service increased from $60 to $70/month. Month-to-month storage rates increased
at Delegal from $11 ft./month to $12 ft./month. The transient rate at Delegal has also been increased from
$1.25 p/ft. to $1.50 p/ft. per night. These rates are competitive with area marinas. In addition, the haul-out fee
has been increased from a flat $20 to $5/ft. (round trip). A rack fee at the Harbor was added for $20 day for
non-members as well.
• In an effort to make the fueling procedure more efficient, the fuel dock will be equipped with a tablet device.
The fuel attendant will have the ability to swipe a credit card or charge to an account from the dock. This will
alleviate the customer from having to walk to the store or having the dockhand run up to the store and back
down to the dock.
• General maintenance to the buildings and property, such as painting, will be kept to a high standard.
• In the past, the Marinas have not detailed boats in house. Currently, our members’ boats are in an open rack
system, which can lead to the accumulation of leaves, dirt, and other debris. Many boaters have to clean their
boats twice -- once before they leave the dock and once when they return. The new rack system, to be installed
in the next two years, should address these concerns, with a cover and sides. Meanwhile, we can address this
issue with several potential options, such as a detailing program. Boats are like cars and should be detailed at
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•

least once a year. Compounding and wax help protect that expensive investment. Revenue from detailing could
average $500 per boat. Although a detail program at first glance seems like good revenue, careful research will
be conducted before beginning the program. Initially, a survey would be conducted to see how much interest
exists in such a program. If it’s determined a detail program is needed, a business plan would be drafted. In
addition, a wash program will be started in 2015. The Harbor will offer a $20 basic wash and $40 deluxe option
that includes soap and scrubbing.
At Delegal, the necessity to update the pump-out system will be examined. If it’s determined the system
needs to be replaced, every effort will be made to utilize the DNR’s Clean Vessel Act Grant program when
purchasing a new system to help lower the cost. The grant would pay for 75% of the project cost. Furthermore,
issues with the water lines breaking will be addressed. The practicality of whether the lines should be fixed in
the near future or when the docks are up for replacement in 2022 will be taken into consideration. Flex pipe
technology will be studied closely for a replacement option. As with the Harbor, general maintenance, such as
painting, will be kept to a high standard.

2015 Marketing Expectations
The Marinas plan to achieve revenue targets in occupancy levels for 2015 through retention of existing customers
and attracting new customers. 2015 actions to retain existing boaters include the following.
• Customer service plays an essential role in retention. We will also be making sure all staff members understand
the importance and what it means to give great customer service.
• Owners generally need to use their boat to make it worthwhile, or ultimately they will sell their vessel if they
haven’t enjoyed it enough to justify the cost. In order to provide increased opportunities, additional activities
will be offered so that boaters will be enticed to use their boats. Fishing seminars will be offered, paddle board
and kayak classes will be held, excursions to special destinations will take place, and a fishing tournament will
be held in the fall. In addition, special themed cookouts will be held at Landings Harbor and Delegal Creek
marinas. The website will be used to help facilitate and promote these activities throughout the year.
• The 2013 Community Survey reconfirmed data collected in 2009 that there are enough potential marina
members within the Landings community to fill every space at both marinas, and previous attempts to convert
them have not been as successful as hoped. A direct mailer will be sent to boaters within The Landings
promoting the Marinas and offering concessions if they sign an annual contract.
• A referral program will be continued in 2015 and re-advertised on a regular basis, and a variety of incentives
will be presented to entice current marina members to bring new people to the Marinas.
• In 2015, the Marinas plan to attend the Savannah Boat show, the Charleston Boat Show, the Annapolis Boat
Show, and possibly one other show. Both marinas will be highlighted at each show.
• Marketing in 2015 will include advertising through Dozier’s Waterway Guide to attract seasonal marina guests.
• Many, if not all marinas in the local area, use Google AdWords to have more favorable exposure when a
potential customer is searching for marinas on the web. Google AdWords will be used in 2015 to get us on the
top of a Google search page.
• As in 2014, the Marinas plan to donate storage space to the local CCA chapter auctions. The donation will
strengthen relations between the Marinas and CCA, which is the largest boating and fishing organization in the
area. Additionally, the donation will promote the Marinas to a captive audience of boating enthusiasts while
assisting in the protection of our local water’s ecosystem.
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The Marinas will team up with a local kayaking group to provide courses for residents out of Delegal. In a
continued effort to increase watersport activities in 2015, the Marinas will be teaming up with another outside
vendor for residents interested in paddle boarding and even paddle board yoga. The Coastal Conservation
Association and the Marinas will also collaborate on hosting a few fishing seminars out of the Harbor, which
will be open to all residents.
There were no fishing tournaments in 2014. Historically, tournaments have not been successful due to poor
weather, planning, and lack of sponsorships. Although a tournament at Landings Harbor and/or Delegal has
proven to be a challenge, we will be working closely with the CCA and local captains on having a successful
fishing tournament in 2015.

Photo by Erica Kersey
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Public Works Mission Statement
The mission of the Public Works Department is to ensure that The Landings is a well-maintained community that operates at a good
value for its property owners by maintaining, repairing, and improving all infrastructure, equipment, and grounds owned and operated
by The Landings Association. The Department consists of the following five program areas: Contract Administration, Building and
Grounds, Construction, Environmental, and Fleet. Each program area fulfills a specific role to support the strategic objectives of the
Department to ensure the Association’s services and facilities provide an aesthetically pleasing, secure lifestyle for residents.
The Association uses a Capital Asset Management Plan, which captures all assets over $1,000 owned by the Association, to
organize and manage the short- and long-term capital replacement and repair reserve funds. The Capital Asset Management Plan is
evaluated and updated annually for the useful life, remaining life, and current year cost of the assets. Once evaluated to ensure that the
asset replacement or repair is absolutely necessary, these items are included and funded within the Capital Reserve account.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Sign Painting Program
The Association continued to refurbish and repaint 1/4 of the signs and mailbox posts throughout the community.
In 2014, the areas completed were Deer Creek, Oakridge, and Plantation. This work was completed through a
combination of in-house staff and contracted means, and funded through the Association’s operating budget.
Lagoon Structure Replacement
Some of the lagoon structures within our community are rapidly approaching or have reached the end of
their asset lives, thus requiring extensive maintenance for continued long-term service. As a result of engineering
inspections and annual evaluations, it was determined that the structures located in lagoon #114 (near Hasleiter’s
Retreat), #120 (near Peregrine Crossing), and #122 (Library lagoon) needed to be replaced due to structural failures.
This work was conducted through contracted means and was funded through the Capital Reserves.
Community Path/Trail Resurfacing
The goal of the resurfacing/repair program is to eliminate damaged, raised, and/or buckled sections, which is
largely a result of root intrusions. Through annual inspections and evaluations, the Public Works Committee and
staff selected paths based on severity of damage, frequency of use, and potential safety concerns, thereby meeting
the Association’s standards for replacement.
In 2014, the project consisted of converting 14,800 L.F. of asphalt paths to concrete through contracted means.
The paths that were converted to concrete during this project included Sounding Point to Marshview Landing and
the remaining sections along Yam Gandy and Delegal Road. The contractor conducted the replacement at a unit
price that was $1.75 per L.F. higher than 2013, but $7.25 lower than 2012. The project was funded through the
Capital Reserves.
Street Resurfacing and Repair Program
Upon completion of the 2014 road paving evaluations/inspections, the Public Works Committee and staff
selected roads and curbing that were most deteriorated and which also met Association standards for repair. This
project was bid out to qualified contractors to perform the repairs and resurfacing. The project scope included 63
locations for a total of 2,136 square yards of road surface and curbing throughout the community. This annual
project was funded through the Capital Reserves.
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Street Restriping Project
The purpose of the Street Restriping Project is to improve safety, delineate lanes and direction of travel, and to
enhance overall aesthetics of the roadways. The road restriping project is conducted once every three years. The
striping consisted of 167,073 linear feet of center lines, 5,978 stop bars, 4,543 linear feet of chevrons, and 9,587
linear feet of crosswalks throughout the community. This project is funded through the operational budget.
Storm Drain Repair & Replacement
All storm drains scheduled for repair for 2014-2019 were evaluated by The Public Works Committee and staff
for repair and/or replacement. Eleven project areas were selected as potential flood hazards and/or drainage system
failure concerns. The resulting contracted project included the replacement of 11 inlet structures, 1,383 linear feet
of storm drain pipe, and five outfall/headwall sections, which were funded through the Capital Reserves.
Main Gate Monument Sign
The Landings monument sign, located at the Main Gate, was originally installed in 1992 and was showing major
signs of deterioration. While repairs and repainting have been performed over the years, the sign reached its asset
life and was replaced. Originally scheduled to be completed in 2013, the project was delayed until 2014 in order to
evaluate the new construction material used at the Marshwood (North) gate sign. This project was funded through
the Capital Reserves.
Oakridge and Deer Creek Gate Awnings
The gate awnings at the Oakridge and Deer Creek gatehouses were showing major signs of deterioration and
were replaced with extended hip roofs to complement the copper roofs installed at other gates in 2008. These
projects were funded through the Capital Reserves.
Administration Building Renovation
The Association’s Administration Building was built in 1992, and for the past 22 years the Association has adapted
the building to meet the needs of the community. In 2014, the building’s lobby and service areas were redesigned
and renovated to improve customer service, aesthetics, and efficiency of the facility. The Administration Building’s
interior had reached its 20-year asset life and required office painting, replacement of carpet, and soundproofing
with acoustic drywall. The project was funded through the Capital Asset Management Plan.
Accessibility Upgrades
In an effort to improve accessibility for those with limited mobility, The Landings Association conducted
renovations to the Administration Building, Sunset Pavilion, and the Athletic Field restrooms. The accessibility
upgrades to the Administration Building were included in the redesign and renovation of the building. The necessary
modifications to the Sunset Pavilion to increase the accessibility included new doors with approved thresholds and
a lift. The Athletic Field restrooms received a slight increase to the square footage of each bathroom, to allow for
wheelchair turning, and an inclined walkway that was also widened around the building. All fixtures were replaced
so that the toilets and sinks would be within accessibility guidelines. These renovations were completed in 2014 and
were funded through the Capital Asset Management Plan.
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Public Works Emergency Generator
A Landings resident donated a gently-used generator to the Association, which will be used to provide emergency
power to the Public Works building. Staff performed some minor repairs and preventative maintenance on the
generator and then erected a concrete pad to raise the generator above the flood plain. Contractors provided service
for the electrical and gas connections and switches before in-house staff constructed a fence to block the view of
the generator. Public Works is an integral part of our emergency response plan, and this generator will facilitate
operations in the event of an emergency.

2015 EXPECTATIONS
Pine Straw Program
In the spring of 2015, the Association will continue to offer a bulk pine straw purchase and installation program.
Staff will work with vendors to negotiate the best price per bale for high quality, long-leaf pine straw.
Sign Painting Program
The Association will continue to refurbish and repaint approximately 1/3 of the community’s mailbox posts and
signs (average 1,500 units) through a combination of in-house and contracted means. The area of the community to
be addressed in 2015 will be Landings Way North (including all side streets) and a portion of the Tidewater portion
of the community. This work will be funded through the Association’s operating budget.
Annual Street Resurfacing & Repair Project
The purpose of the Annual Street Resurfacing & Repair Project is to resurface and/or repair identified roads based
on their longevity and condition, with final selection determined by physical inspection, including core samples. The
2015 program will be a large scale project focusing on replacing large sections of primary roads, including Landings
Way (North and South) and Westcross Road (from LWS to the Westcross Bridge). This annual work is guided under
the multi-year schedule established in the Capital Asset Management Plan and funded through the Reserve Fund.
Annual Community Path Resurfacing Project
Over the past few years, the Association has replaced the asphalt community paths with concrete. Based on the
performance of concrete, the asset life of the new paths is estimated to be 15 years. Staff has budgeted to replace
approximately 8,500 linear feet of community paths in 2015 and will review projected replacements to potentially
partner with the Club, which could alter contract quantities. This annual work is guided under the multi-year schedule
established in the Capital Asset Management Plan and is funded through the Reserve Fund.
Storm Drain Survey
For the 2015 Storm Drain Repair and Replacement Program, the Association will contract for a video survey of
the Association’s storm drains scheduled for replacement 2015-2025. This survey will allow staff to determine better
the state of the storm drain system, backed by video evidence. Staff also will be able to provide a more accurate
repair and replacement program based on visual evidence. This project will be funded through the Reserves Fund.
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Public Works Office and TLA Administration Building Second Level Renovation
The Public Works Department is a metal frame building that was erected in 1992 to house the fleet maintenance
area and the Public Works Administration offices. The offices remain in their original state since the construction
and have surpassed their 25-year interior asset life. As part of the progression to update Association facilities to
increase customer service, efficiency, and aesthetics, a renovation will be required. This project will include updating
the restrooms, new carpet/tile, paint, and furnishings.
In January of 2014, the Association Administration Building underwent a major renovation to service customers
better, improve aesthetics, and increase efficiency of the facility. While the main level received an update, the second
level remains in its original state. In an effort to complement the main level of operations and increase efficiency,
the second level will receive a minor redesign with upgrades to the walls, flooring, and color palette. Both of the
renovation projects will be funded through the Capital Asset Management Plan.
Sunset Pavilion Upgrades
The Landings Association will continue the effort to improve accessibility for those with limited mobility at our
current facilities. Due to the required scope of work conducted in 2014, a portion of the budget for renovating the
restrooms had to be utilized to install the lift, base, and the wall that aligns the walkway to the lift. In addition to the
effort to improve accessibility to the Sunset Pavilion restrooms, staff continued to evaluate potential improvements,
including the addition of a prep kitchen and the relocation of the laundry facility to be included in the 2015
projected scope. The restrooms are original to the building, with a minor interior update in August 2005. The
restroom fixtures are stained and obsolete, presenting a poor image and condition. This project will be funded
through the Capital Asset Management Plan.

STATISTICS
Association Buildings Maintained
Vehicles Maintained
Mailboxes and Signs Painted
Mailboxes and Signs Repaired
Miles of Cart Paths/Trails Repaved
Square Feet of Road Repaired
Acres of Common Property Maintained
Storm Drains Repaired
Number of Streetlights Repaired
Cubic Yards of Debris Removed From Roads
Number of Private Trees Approved for Removal
Number of Common Area Trees Removed
Miles of Road Shoulder Pruned for Visibility
Number of Deer Removed
Number of Hogs Removed

2014		
2013
14		14
22		22
1,340		1,195		
449		788
2.8		4.8
1,177
6,8670
690		690
10
21
33		51
2,921
2,895
1,138		1,835
227		308
92		92
189		288
11
14
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Security Mission Statement
The mission of the Security Department is to promote a secure lifestyle through community service in four major operational areas:
Access Control, Emergency Service Assistance, Patrol Operations, and Covenant Compliance. The Department’s goals are to ensure
the safety and security of the residents, their guests, and employees; maintain the privacy of the community; and deter illegal activity. The
Security Director is responsible for emergency planning, law enforcement, fire and EMS liaison, and general Security operations. The
Department is organized similar to a police department, with three shift supervisors and three assistants (one for each shift). The Security
Supervisors report to the Security Director, who in turn reports to the General Manager.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Security Leadership
Security Committee members largely remained the same, with only one new member, and assisted with several
special projects in 2014, which included golf cart registration, callboxes, cameras, access management software, and
due process and appeals. All of the current committee members were selected to remain on the committee in 2015.
Access Management
A variety of automated and manual systems are used to process vehicle entries using any of our seven gates.
The Main Access Control Facility (ACF) is the 24/7 hub of our automated systems, including our video camera
system. It also serves as our dispatch center for calls and is augmented by dedicated resident volunteers who assist in
processing guest passes. The Marshwood (North) Access Control Facility is staffed 12 hours daily, Monday through
Saturday, and is open primarily for sales guests on Sundays from 10 a.m. until 5 p.m. The Deer Creek, Marshview
Landing, McWhorter, Moon River Landing, and Oakridge gates are automated. In 2014, a total of 111,717 guest
passes were processed for residents. Applications By Design, Inc. (ABDi) was awarded the contract for our access
management software. The software was installed at the end of 2014, and is scheduled to go “live” in March 2015.
The increased level of security is based on the principle of “pre-authorization” for guests and vendors. To be
effective, residents must embrace the fundamental principle that Security Department team members must know in
advance if someone, including vendors, is expected to arrive and request access into our community.
Video Monitoring
In December 2014, 21 Landings Association cameras in our video camera system were upgraded to five megapixel
cameras, and a new Network Video Recorder was installed to accommodate the increased storage needs. The
Landings Club is in the process of updating four existing pool cameras and possibly adding more, all of which will
be tied into our video system. A new camera was installed at the RV storage area and will be connected to our system
once fiber optic cable is extended to this specific area of the island.
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Emergency Service Assistance
Security patrols respond to all medical calls, fire/burglar alarms, and emergency incidents in the community.
Patrols provide escort for police, fire, and emergency medical units during emergency situations. In 2014, officers
assigned to patrol duties responded to 618 medically related calls, 24 reported fires, and more than 120 fire/burglar
alarms. Security Department team members obtained or maintained their American Heart Association’s CPR/AED
certification.
The Landings Association has developed professional relationships with private and government entities, and
our combined efforts resulted in the following:
• The Security Director completed Skidaway Island First Responder’s course.
• Security Department team members worked closely with Savannah-Chatham Police Department and achieved
a 17% reduction of thefts and 7% reduction of vandalism. Dedicated hard work by SCMPD’s officers
and detectives and assistance from the District Attorney’s office resulted in criminals being prosecuted for
vandalism to Club facilities and golf course, and burglaries.
• Chatham County Emergency Management Agency has continued to offer a wealth of information, and the
Association’s Hurricane Plan was updated in 2014.
Patrol and Property Checks
Patrol Officers are tasked with routine preventive patrols; facility and property checks for The Landings
Association, The Landings Club, and The Landings Company; residential property checks; various calls for service;
and responding to and assisting fire, medical, and law enforcement agencies. The Security Department’s residential
property check program continues to be a well-utilized service, with 5,576 premise checks in 2014. ABDi’s
OfficerPulse software will be utilized via iPads in each of the patrol vehicles. When an officer checks a resident’s
property, an email can be immediately sent to the homeowner advising the status of their property. Patrol Officers
traveled more than 162,456 miles throughout the community on patrol during the year. The Landings Association
continued to contract off-duty police officers to patrol the streets 36 hours per week and for special events.
The upgrade from analog to digital radios was completed for the Security Department, and team members are
very pleased with the increased clarity and greatly decreased “dead zones” in the community.
Covenant Compliance
Staffing for the Covenant Compliance function remained at one fulltime Covenant Compliance Officer who
verifies and resolves reports of Covenant violations. These reports may be generated by residents or Association
staff. The Covenants Compliance Officer continued to assist with the Development Committee’s PRIDE Property
Awards Program. Private Property Maintenance Standards (PPMS) were developed and will assist at identifying and
resolving non-compliance issue.
Neighbors Helping Neighbors assisted in resolving several cases with extenuating circumstances in 2014, and
we look forward to continuing this extremely beneficial partnership. There was an average of 25 valid complaints
received each month, for an annual total of 305. A total of 117 cases remained open at the end of 2014. The
majority of violations were related to boats/trailers, yard maintenance, and house/structures.
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Team Development
New Security Officers completed initial orientation and training, and continued their on-the-job training throughout
the year. New officers are required to complete Security Officer II and Security Officer III exams. Security Supervisors
participated in four hours of activities focusing on strategic planning. In addition, all Security Officers took an online
course in Professional Report Writing and attended classes at Skidaway State Park for snake identification and handling.
They also attended a one-hour session presented by the Georgia Chapter of the Alzheimer’s Association. Three
Sergeants enrolled in American Society of Industrial Security’s (ASIS) Physical Security Professional certification
program and attended the ASIS’s seminars in Atlanta. The Security Director completed Cooper’s LEAD course at
University of Virginia’s Darden School of Business. The Leading, Educating and Developing program offers a very
intense one-week seminar for professional development and covers the dynamics of developing and sustaining a High
Performance Organization.

2015 EXPECTATIONS
Technology and Industry Trends and Standards
As previously mentioned, we are very excited to have partnered with ABDi for our access control management
software. The Association will continue to communicate with residents and assist in utilizing this software’s many
powerful and robust features. One of the great attributes of this system is that we can slowly increase our level of
security over time, and each resident can tailor their level of security through various functions. We strongly encourage
residents to pre-authorize any expected arrivals, both guests and commercial vendors, for their home.
Residents can achieve pre-authorizing guests or commercial vendors by inserting the expected arrivals on their
permanent or temporary list. Residents’ “pre-authorization” lists can be managed several ways, including calling the
guest authorization line, logging into their online account online, or by using a new smartphone app.
Although we are now requiring residents to pre-authorize commercial vendors, they must remain in compliance
with our Commercial guidelines. Commercial access remains high, with more than 14,700 commercial passes sold.
Revenue generated by commercial access fees contributes to offsetting the cost of maintaining the infrastructure as
well as the cost of Security required to ensure commercial vendors have legitimate business within the community.
Several Requests for Proposals were received in 2014 regarding upgrading our current barcode readers, and due
diligence research has continued to explore the comparison of barcodes vs. RFID (radio frequency identification)
technology. Association staff and Security Committee members will continue to evaluate automated vehicle entry
solutions and will propose a final recommendation in 2015.
Based on the research completed in 2014, the callbox project’s scope increased to include Oakridge and Deer Creek
village entrances, and the new technology will be installed in 2015.
Video Monitoring
The upgraded cameras and NVR system will continue to be analyzed and adjusted for optimum performance. A
complete physical assessment of the Security Department and community will include recommendations regarding
the possible expansion of our camera system.
Golf Cart Registration
The Board of Directors voted for the Association to register all golf carts operated within the community. This
initiative, dubbed “Happy Trials”, was initiated in January 2015 and will continue through the year. We did not reach
our goal of zero accidents due to unsafe golf cart operations in 2014, and we will continue to promote our “safety
first” and “due care” philosophy.
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Security
Team Development
Scheduled training for 2015 includes the following:
• The Gated Community Managers Association has developed a Certified Gated Community Specialist
program, which includes eight-hour blocks of instruction relating to community relations, effective report
writing, patrol methods, security information technology, and critical incident preparedness. A final exam is
administered upon completion of the 40 hours of instruction. Security Department team members will attend
several of these sessions in 2015.
• Sergeants will be required to complete American Society for Industrial Security’s Physical Security Professional
(PSP) certification.
• Team members will complete or continue to be certified in American Heart Association’s CPR/AED course.
• Team leaders and members will continue the Association’s Vision and Values training.
• The Field Training Officer (FTO) program continues to be developed.
• Team leaders and member will continue to be trained on new technology.
• New Security Officers orientation and Security Officer II and III exams will continue.
• Team leaders will be required to attend and complete additional training.

STATISTICS
Guest Pass Requests Processed
Active Barcodes
Incident Reports Filed
Assistance Requests
EMS Support Runs
Insecure Property Reports
Covenant Violations*
Alarm Responses (Fire/Burglar)

2014		
2013
111,717
109,055
20,385
26,842
7,752
5,449
401
620
618
543
442
463
305
403
90
102

*Covenant Violations by Type:
House/Structures
108
Trash
66
Trailers/RVs/Boats*		
Trees**		
Yard
46
Parking Violations
56
Animal/Pets
12
Signage
17
Misc. Items
0
*Included in Parking in 2014
**Include in Yard in 2014

136
77
75
31
23
18
15
10
18
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The Landings Company

2014 Board of
Directors:
Bob Meng, Chair
Don Roehm, Treasurer
Doug Marchand, Secretary
Nancy Pavey, Director
John Fishburne, Director
Nick Sorvillo, Director
Beth Tarjan, Ex Officio
President
Raoul Rushin

The Landings Company
The Landings Company is the marketing and
real estate arm of The Landings Association. Its
Mission is to support and enhance property values at
The Landings. To this end, the Company conducts
national, regional, and local marketing programs
on behalf of the entire community and maintains a
Welcome Center for prospective purchasers.
The Company also manages proprietary real
estate brokerage and property rental operations
which:
1. Facilitate an efficient and professional process to move prospects, responding to marketing
programs or referrals, to purchase property.
2. Generate the net cash flows that are the sole source of funding for community marketing.

Background
The Landings Company is the successor organization to the marketing and sales
Vice President of Sales
operations of the developer of The Landings (Branigar) and has been in operation
Lonnie Kinlaw
since 1998. It is a taxable corporation, wholly owned by The Landings Association and
managed by a separate Board of Directors. Day-to-day operations are conducted by a
Director of Operations
small staff and a number of independent, licensed Realtors. The Company cooperates
Melba Dasher
with both the Association and the independent Landings Club to create awareness and
ensure that prospective purchasers appreciate the community’s amenities, programs,
Broker-in-Charge
and lifestyle.
Barbara Foster
Extensive marketing of The Landings is essential in light of the private location and
destination, meaning non-resort, character of our community. The Landings consists
of more than 4,400 privately-owned properties with a combined value of ~$2 billion.
Prior to the real estate downturn, annual property turnover averaged about seven percent, or 300 properties. This requires
a minimum of 300 purchasers annually just to manage supply and, optimally, 400 to support improved home values. More
than half of purchasers typically come from outside our local area and have to be attracted to our community by a variety of
marketing initiatives. With new developers recently buying troubled destination communities and potential purchasers having
awaited better economic conditions, competition is increasingly intense for the pool of prospective buyers.

Marketing Expenditures
From 2004 to 2007, the Company averaged more than $1.4 million spent annually to market the Landings
community. The downturn of the market in 2008 resulted in less cash being generated from real estate operations
and, therefore, a decline in the amount spent for marketing.

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
Community Marketing Programs
Sales overall were up 22% in 2014, and national marketing was increasingly effective. Sales to buyers who learned
about The Landings from national marketing increased 27% over 2013, to 90 in 2014. The increase in buyers was
driven by leads brought in by the new brand and website, added digital advertising, representation at nine Ideal Living
(formerly Live South) Shows, a ClubCorp Night of Luxury show, and placements in print media with cumulative
circulation of more than 5.7 million. The new website and digital advertising were especially cost effective tools to
produce the majority of the new buyers.
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The Landings Company
While this increase in buyers from national marketing is encouraging, we have much more to do. The most
significant opportunity for increased sales comes from outside the Savannah area and requires national marketing. All
of the profits of the Company are dedicated to marketing The Landings. Note in the graph that marketing spending
has recently increased due to the success of real estate operations. However, marketing spending is still well below
prior spending or the spending of communities owned by developers.

SLIDE 2
SLIDE 2

Does National Marketing really produce MORE
Potential Buyers for my Property?
National Marketing
really produce
MORE
YESDoes
– National
Marketing
Works!
Potential Buyers for my Property?
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The Landings Company
Collaboration with The Landings Club
The Landings Club is a private club and is a totally separate entity from the Association and the Company.
The amenities and lifestyle the Club offers are a key draw for many prospective buyers, and thus are critical for
all Landings property values, whether the current owners are Club members or not. The Company and the Club
continued to expand their synergistic efforts in 2014.
Real Estate Brokerage Operations
Real estate activity at The Landings in 2014 continued to improve. After seven years of declining average home
prices and then a better year in 2013, there was an increase in average price in 2014 over 2013. Additionally, average
days on market dropped, as did the inventory of homes for sale.
In its proprietary real estate operations, the Company’s market share was strong, with the Company participating
in representing the seller, the buyer, or both in more than 78% of all homes closed during the year.

The Landings Company outperforms
other Real Estate Firms
2014 Year End RESULTS
HOME SALES AT THE LANDINGS
THE LANDINGS
COMPANY

OTHER REAL
ESTATE FIRMS

$442,450

$370,500

+19%*

144

165

-13%

Median Home
Price Sold
Average Days on
Market

Note: Data collected from Savannah Multilist Corporation through 12-31-2014
* Original price vs. sale price

Slide 4

2014 Closings by Listing Real Estate Firm
262 Homes Closed at The Landings in 2014
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The Landings
Company
THE LANDINGS
COMPANY
Berkshire Hathaway (formerly Prudential)
Keller Williams Realty
Re/Max Savannah
Seabolt Brokers
Coldwell Banker Platinum
Celia Dunn Sotheby's
Whitley & Associates
ERA
Realty South

5
5
3
4
2
2
2

16

32

176

* Original price vs. sale price

The Landings Company
Slide 4
2014 Closings by Listing Real Estate Firm
262 Homes Closed at The Landings in 2014

The Landings
Company
THE LANDINGS
COMPANY
Berkshire Hathaway (formerly Prudential)
Keller Williams Realty
Re/Max Savannah
Seabolt Brokers
Coldwell Banker Platinum
Celia Dunn Sotheby's
Whitley & Associates
ERA
Realty South
Savannah List for Less
Ken Powers Realty
Rawls Realty
International Properties
Mia Madison Properties
Landmark 24 Realty
Cora Bett Thomas Austin Hill & Co
C.E. Hall Real Estate
Coastal Realty Executives
Century 21
Bellwether Realty
Skidaway Island Realty
Skidaway Island Properties
Savannah Realty
Exclusive Georgia Properties
Bob Diamond Realty

5
5
3
4
2
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0

16

32

176

Note: Data collected from Savannah Multilist Corporation through 12-31-2014

2015 EXPECTATIONS
Real Estate Market Conditions
Market conditions in 2015 are expected to improve marginally over 2014. For The Landings, concerns remain
that the supply/demand imbalance between homes being listed for sale and homes being sold needs to continue to
improve. The mix of inventory listed, how up to date or “new” that inventory is, and the number of homes listed
within key price ranges will be critical to improving sales. Also, as communicated within the context of Vision 2020,
buyers often are looking for smaller, open floor plan, low maintenance options, of which we have little or no supply.
We do believe that values have stabilized in many price ranges and that the average price will improve by about 6%
due to increases in absolute value as well as the change in mix as higher value homes are selling.
Marketing Expenditures
The Company is planning for national, regional, and local real estate marketing expenditures of $1,100,000 in 2015,
provided that sales growth continues. As in past years, the Company may adjust its expenditures based on results
during the course of the year as well as other factors.
Community Marketing Programs
Marketing efforts will build on the successful rebranding efforts of the Company along with other new marketing
initiatives. Our new website, search engine optimization efforts, and other digital tools are crucial to mounting results
and future success. Continued participation in Ideal Living Shows, fresh targeted advertising, and other aggressive
efforts to reach those who are likely to consider a lifestyle move as well as value the amenities of The Landings will
be key to a successful 2015 and beyond.
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Financial Report

Audited Financial Statements
and Other Information
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Photo by Beth Powers
33

Treasurer’s Report

The audited consolidated financial statements of The Landings Association, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, The Landings Company, together with the unqualified opinion of Holland, Henry & Bromley,
LLP, Certified Public Accountants, are presented on the following pages.
The consolidated financial condition of the Association and its subsidiary, the Company, continues
to be financially sound. The Association experienced increases in such non-Assessment revenues as
Commercial Vehicle Registrations, Architectural Review Fees, and Dump Ticket Sales. Due in part to these
increases, consolidated revenues of $16,181,772 exceeded consolidated expenses, including depreciation, of
$14,975,176, resulting in a net increase in members’ equity of $1,206,596. At December 31, 2014, members’
equity totaled $15,097,848.
Until December 31, 2013, the Marinas operated through an enterprise fund where revenues from fees
for goods and services were used to support the operations. In September 2013, the Board of Directors
approved a strategic plan where the Marinas became a consolidated, community amenity, rather than an
internally separate entity. As a result, capital replacements at the Marinas are treated the same as for all
other departments, such as Public Works and Security. This approach supports the 2013 community survey
findings that 94% of respondents agreed that “The Landings’ Marinas and surrounding areas benefit all
property owners” and that 95% of respondents are satisfied with the Marinas. One result of this transition
was the elimination of the Marinas’ interfund loans. The total amount of the interfund loans elimination
was approximately $1,417,000.
The Marinas, which are included in the operating results of the Association, continued to cover their
operating expenses while also recording a positive net revenue after depreciation of $7,727. The Association’s
General Operations showed net expenses over revenues of $54,472.
During 2014, the Company’s revenues exceeded expenses by $170,432. Net revenue from the sale of
property rose 29%. This allowed the Company to invest $1,087,198 to market The Landings. The Company
will continue cost containment measures and marketing initiatives that are consistent with future projections
of the real estate market’s recovery.
I have enjoyed serving as your Treasurer for the past year, and I thank each member of the Finance and
Audit Committee for his or her contributions during the year. On behalf of the Committee, I also extend
our appreciation to the financial and other staff of the Association, for their efforts resulting in a financially
successful 2014.

Nancy Pavey
2014 Treasurer
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HOLLAND, HENRY & BROMLEY, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
J. Richard Henry, CPA
Christopher H. Holland, CPA, CFP®
S. Stewart Bromley, CPA, CFP®
Ronnie A. Barnhill, Jr., CPA
Shannon L. Brett, CPA, CFE

MEMBER:
American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants
Georgia Society of
Certified Public Accountants
South Carolina Association of
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To The Board of Directors and Members
The Landings Association, Inc.
600 Landings Way South
Savannah, Georgia 31411

Private Companies Practice
Section Firms Division of
American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Landings Association, Inc. and its subsidiary, The
Landings Company, which comprise the consolidating balance sheets as of December 31, 2014, and the related
consolidating statements of revenues and expenses and changes in members’ equity, and consolidating statements
of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the Association’s December
31, 2013 financial statements and, in our report dated February 12, 2014, we expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements.
2 East Bryan Street • Post Office Box 8878 • Savannah, Georgia 31412-8878 • Telephone (912) 235-3410 • FAX (912) 235-3414 • www.hhbcpa.com

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the individual and
consolidated financial positions of The Landings Association, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2014, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
Report on Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
supplementary information on pages 52-55 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the Association’s management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Disclaimer of Opinion on Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the supplementary information of
future major repairs and replacements on pages 50-51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Holland, Henry & Bromley, LLP
February 11, 2015

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2014
The Landings Association, Inc.
Reserve
Funds

Operating

The Landings
Company

Total

Eliminations

Total

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & money market accounts

$

Cash held in escrow

2,461,868

$ 4,672,687

Consolidating Balance Sheets

2,768,153
Certificates of deposit
Other accounts receivable, net

$

7,134,555

306,285

1

Inventories
Prepaid insurance & other

$

519,429

306,285

333,613

4,672,687

7,440,840

853,042

1,500,000

$
-

7,653,984

$

6,810,156

639,898

564,406

8,293,882

7,374,562

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,350,000

35,165

35,165

35,165

56,264

38,490

38,490

38,490

36,524

199,188

199,188

199,188

142,130

10,066,725

8,959,480

6,089,600

5,922,256

Total Current Assets

3,040,996

6,172,687

9,213,683

853,042

Property, Plant & Equipment, net

5,194,551

272,475

5,467,026

622,574

-

115,000

-

Other Assets
Deferred tax asset
Investment in subsidiary

1,114,517

Total Other Assets
TOTAL

1,114,517

1,114,517

-

$

9,350,064

$ 6,445,162

$

15,795,226

1,114,517
$

1,590,616

$

244,412

$

$

249,412

$

2,332

115,000

78,000

$ (1,114,517)

-

-

(1,114,517)

115,000

115,000

$ (1,114,517) $ 16,271,325

78,000
$

14,959,736

$

361,735

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Escrow balances & deposits

5,000

3,340

3,340

306,285

306,285

Deferred tax liability
Accrued payroll & taxes withheld

138,341

Total Current Liabilities

692,378

5,000

$

251,744
3,340

7,751

333,613

639,898

564,406

-

4,500

4,500

2,500

138,341

135,654

697,378

476,099

-

100

-

1,114,417

273,995

132,092

1,173,477

1,068,484

(100)

-

-

1,114,417

943,985

(1,114,417)

13,983,431

12,947,267

(1,114,517)

15,097,848

-

Equity
Common stock

2

Retained earnings
Members' equity

8,657,686

Total Equity
TOTAL

$

6,440,162

8,657,686

6,440,162

9,350,064

$ 6,445,162

15,097,848
15,097,848
$

15,795,226

1,114,517
$

1,590,616

$

$ (1,114,517) $ 16,271,325

13,891,252
$

14,959,736

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
1 - Allowance for doubtful accounts was $15,400 and $18,800 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
2 - Common Stock $1 par, 10,000 shares authorized, 100 shares issued and outstanding.
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Year ended
December 31,
2013

Year ended December 31, 2014

Consolidating Statements of Revenues and Expenses
and Changes in Members’ Equity

The Landings Association, Inc.
Operating

Reserve
Funds

$ 5,257,418

$ 1,921,830

The Landings
Company

Total

Eliminations

Total

Total

Revenues
Assessments
Marina

$

1,454,358

7,179,248

Commissions

-

Vehicle registration

768,215

768,215

Service agreements

224,544

224,544

Architectural review fees
Interest earned

96,622
886

4,450

Rental fees
Telecommunications lease
Other
Total

$

1,454,358
$

4,773,918

6,847,900
1,439,059

4,773,918

3,692,686

768,215

690,200
220,344

96,622

96,622

105,956

5,336

5,336

9,524

1,766,135

1,766,135

1,847,611

87,526

118,275

385,577

365,951

16,722,621

15,337,506

1,451,364

1,451,364

1,420,861

3,920,323

3,920,323

3,745,468

1,278,546

1,222,041

87,526

87,526

371,064

371,064

14,513

10,186,913

6,554,566

1,926,280

$

1,454,358

205,686

$

-

8,260,633

7,179,248

(18,858)

(18,858)

Expenses
Community services

1,451,364

Public works

3,076,952

Marina

1,278,546

1,278,546

General & administrative

1,909,387

843,371

1,909,387

759,945

2,650,474

2,447,462

Commissions

-

2,903,537

2,903,537

2,185,166

Costs related to rentals

-

1,629,279

1,629,279

1,724,658

Sales & marketing

-

1,087,198

1,087,198

1,009,495

Income tax expense (benefit)
Total

3,080

3,080

(18,858)

(35,000)

(31,920)

843,371

8,562,700

6,344,959

Excess of revenues

541,304

1,082,909

1,624,213

Depreciation

588,049

588,049
1,082,909

1,036,164

170,432

(170,432)

-

-

123,687

1,082,909

1,206,596

170,432

(170,432)

1,206,596

957,921

7,997,331

5,893,921

13,891,252

944,085

(944,085)

13,891,252

12,933,331

Net (expenses) revenues

(46,745)

Equity in income of subsidiary

170,432

Equity, January 1
Transfers
Equity, December 31

536,668
$ 8,657,686

(18,858)

(30,600)

7,719,329

14,888,801

13,724,551

209,607

1,833,820

1,612,955

39,175

627,224

655,034

1,206,596

957,921

170,432

(536,668)
$ 6,440,162

$

15,097,848

$

1,114,517

$ (1,114,517) $ 15,097,848

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

$

13,891,252
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Year ended
December 31,
2013

Year ended
December 31, 2014
The Landings Association, Inc.
Reserve
Funds

Operating

Total

The Landings
Company

Eliminations

Total

1,206,596

$

$

1,206,596

Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Excess of revenues over expenses

$

123,687

$

1,082,909

$

170,432

(170,432) $

$

957,921

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues over expenses
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiary
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of assets

(170,432)

(170,432)

588,049

588,049

170,432
39,175

-

-

627,224

655,034

9,426

9,426

9,426

Provision for doubtful accounts

(3,397)

(3,397)

(3,397)

Decrease in other receivables

24,496

24,496

24,496

8,554

(Increase) decrease in inventories

(1,966)

(1,966)

(1,966)

14,471

(35,000)

(33,100)

(57,058)

(57,058)

(57,058)

(33,427)

(114,155)

(114,155)

(114,991)

93,575

Increase (decrease) in escrow balances & deposits

34,360

34,360

41,132

75,492

(3,192)

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll & taxes withheld

21,291

21,291

120,612

141,903

(21,532)

Decrease in deferred revenues

(4,411)

(4,411)

Change in deferred tax items

-

Increase in prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable & accrued expenses

Transfers to (from) other funds

536,668

(536,668)

Net cash provided by operating activities

986,558

546,241

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures

(50,685)

(735,512)

Proceeds from capital asset disposals

(603,745)

Proceeds from sale of certificates of deposit
Maturity (purchase) of certificates of deposit

100,000

(836)

(4,411)

1,532,799

335,515

(786,197)

12,520

Capital asset transfers

(35,000)

(25,317)

(849,567)

-

-

1,250,000

1,250,000

1,250,000

1,500,000

(1,400,000)

(1,204,000)

(948,994)

(553,567)

(923,677)

(25,317)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

444,648

164,474

609,122

310,198

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1

2,323,505

4,508,213

6,831,718

542,844

$

(811,514)

(1,400,000)

2,768,153

1,588,404

603,745

(381,767)

$

-

1,868,314

12,520

(1,500,000)

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

-

(32,477)

-

12,520

(541,910)

Net cash used by investing activities

(17,423)

4,672,687

$

7,440,840

$

853,042

-

$

-

$

-

919,320

1,034,837

7,374,562

6,339,725

8,293,882

$

7,374,562

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
No cash was paid during either year for interest expense or income taxes.
NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

39

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 - Organization

The Landings Association, Inc. (“Association”) is a homeowners’ association, organized as a not-for-profit corporation
in the State of Georgia. Its members are property owners of The Landings on Skidaway Island, a private residential
community comprised of 4,596 acres and 4,420 lots, located in Chatham County, Georgia. The Association owns,
operates, and maintains the common properties, facilities, and the marinas, and it provides security services in the
form of access control within the community.
The Association is the sole shareholder of The Landings Company (“Company”). The Company is responsible for
the marketing and real estate operations previously provided by the property developer, The Branigar Organization.
In accordance with the bylaws of the Company, the transfer of Company stock is restricted solely to the Association,
which is to remain the sole shareholder. The majority of the Company’s expenditures relate to promoting The
Landings’ real estate properties on a national basis, sales of homes and lots, and rentals of owners’ homes.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Codification - The accompanying financial statements adhere
to the accounting guidance of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (Codification), which is the source of
authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles to be applied by non-governmental entities.
Method of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidating financial statements include the accounts of the
Association and the Company. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
The Association provides certain security, lawn care, and advertising services to the Company. These are the only
intercompany transactions.
Accounting Method - Both the Association’s and the Company’s financial statements have been prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recognized when earned, rather than when received, and
expenses are recognized when incurred, rather than when paid. Further, the Association uses fund accounting, which
requires that funds designated for future significant repairs and replacements (the Capital Reserve Fund) and the
funds received for designated purposes other than general operations be classified separately for accounting and
financial reporting purposes. Events subsequent to December 31, 2014 which may have an impact on these financial
statements have been considered through February 11, 2015.
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents represent highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months
or less at the date of purchase.
Segregated Cash Within the Operating Fund - In accordance with the Architectural Guidelines and Review Procedures,
the Association holds monies in escrow for owners and builders during the construction phase of new houses and
major renovations.
Segregated Cash Within The Landings Company - The Company has escrow accounts established to hold the
monies received as down payments on sales contracts and security deposits of members’ houses rented through the
Company.
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Assessments - Members’ assessments for the Association for operating purposes are required to be approved by
a successful vote of the members no more frequently than every three years. The assessment rate for each lot in
2014 and in 2013 was $1,625 and $1,550, respectively, which includes general purpose and reserve assessments.
Disbursements from the Operating Fund generally are at the discretion of the General Manager within the Boardapproved budget and policy. Disbursements from the Reserve Fund may be made only for their designated purposes.
Marina Revenue - Marina revenues from fees for goods and services are used to support the operations. The primary
revenue sources supporting Marina operations are the following: boat rack storage; wet slip rental; merchandise sales;
monthly captains’ fees; and gasoline and diesel sales. Rack and slip rentals, as well as captains’ fees, are billed prior to
the actual provision of the services, and are recognized as income when earned.
Inventories - Merchandise and beverage inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market value. Gasoline
and diesel fuel inventories are recorded based on a moving, weighted-average cost per gallon for the sales period.
Inventories for the Association’s operations include:
2014
2013
Merchandise and other
$ 15,452 $ 14,032
Gasoline and diesel fuel		 23,038		 22,492
$ 38,490 $ 36,524

Recognition of Assets and Depreciation Policy - The Association owns and/or maintains significant amounts of
real property and improvements as follows:
Common property, in acres		 690
Center islands/medians		 313
Lagoons		151
Roadways, in miles		 91
Trails, in miles paved		 22
Bridges		11
Gatehouses and entrances		 7
These properties were, and will be, periodically conveyed to the Association under agreements with developers. The
common properties are real property directly associated with the individual ownership of member properties and are
dedicated for the use of the entire community. They cannot be sold separately and, thus, have no fair market value
other than that related to their intended use. The value of such assets is not recognized in the financial statements of
the Association. The Articles of Incorporation and General Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions permit the Association
to participate in mergers and consolidations with other nonprofit corporations organized for the same purposes;
mortgage the properties; and dedicate or transfer all or any part of the common properties to any public agency,
authority, or utility. Upon dissolution of the Association, the assets, both real and personal, would be dedicated to an
appropriate public agency or activity. All such actions require approval of two-thirds of the membership.
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The Association capitalizes assets acquired with Association funds. Assets donated by members are recorded at fair
market value. Property, plant, and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method at rates that are sufficient to amortize the cost of the assets over their estimated useful
lives. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the combined amounts expensed by the Association for
depreciation were $588,049 and $620,814, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, amounts
expensed by the Company for depreciation were $39,175 and $34,220, respectively.
Property, Plant, and Equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014

2013

Association
Company
Association
Company
Land improvements
$ 1,078,732
$
$ 1,078,732
$
Buildings & docks		 6,338,334		
		
864,138
5,976,119		844,466
Equipment		3,568,857		148,691
		3,385,135		178,582
Furniture & computers		 528,845		
		
277,870
707,767		276,432
Vehicles		839,931		
		1,128,416		
Work-in-progress		273,424		
		135,708		
		 12,628,123		1,290,699
		 12,411,877		1,299,480
Less accumulated
		(7,126,053)		(738,048)
depreciation		(7,161,097)		(743,125)
Land		

		
-		75,000

$5,467,026

$622,574

-		75,000

$5,285,824

$636,432

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Advertising Costs - The Company expenses the majority of advertising and other marketing costs when related
invoices are received.
Reclassifications - Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
Subsequent Events - The Association and the Company have evaluated subsequent events through February 11,
2015, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3 - Concentration of Credit Risk

The Association and the Company maintain their cash balances at regional banks located in Savannah, Georgia. At
December 31, 2014, the Association’s cash balances exceeded federally-insured limits by $7,265,127. At December 31,
2014, the Company’s cash balances exceeded federally-insured limits by $207,519. This uninsured amount represents
demand deposit and money market fund accounts. The Association and the Company have not experienced any losses
of such funds, and management believes the Association and the Company are not exposed to any significant risks.
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Note 4 - Association Investments

Investment securities are those investments that the Association acquires with the intent and the ability to hold to
maturity. Securities chosen for investment are selected to preserve capital and protect investment principal, to maintain
sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated needs, and to attain a market rate of return consistent with the preservation of
capital.
The short-term investments at December 31, 2014 are Certificates of Deposit at a predetermined interest rate based
on the terms of the purchase, as well as Money Market Funds.
The Association adheres to the Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures topic of the Codification, which establishes
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1
		

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2
		
		

Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or
financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3
		

Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the
fair value measurement and unobservable.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the investment assets at fair value as of December
31, 2014 and 2013.
		
Certificates of deposit
Total investment assets at fair value

		
Certificates of deposit
Total investment assets at fair value

Note 5 - Assessments Receivable

Level 1
$1,500,000
$1,500,000

Level 1
$1,350,000
$1,350,000

2014

Level 2
$
$
-

2013

Level 2
$
$
-

Level 3
$
$
-

Level 3
$
$
-

The Association’s policy is to place liens on owners whose assessments are two months in arrears. Past due assessments
of approximately $22,571 were written off at the end of 2014 per approval by the Association’s Board of Directors.
All of the past due owners, for 2008-2014, have been suspended and reported to the Association’s attorney to proceed
with legal action.
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Note 6 - Reserve Fund

Future Major Repairs and Replacements - The Association’s governing documents authorize the levying of
annual assessments, which provide for the repair and maintenance of drainage facilities, selected assets, and road and
community path/trail resurfacing.
It is the practice of the Association to include normal, recurring repair and maintenance of common properties in
annual operating budgets. The Association also sets aside in a separate repair and replacement Capital Reserve Fund
those amounts estimated to be required to meet future major repair and replacement costs of certain components
of common properties. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimated future expenditures, and variations may be
material. If additional funds are needed, the Association has the authority, subject to membership approval, to increase
regular assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds are available.
Capital Reserve Fund Storm Drain and Flood Water Control and Selected Assets Components - In 2011, several engineering firms were contracted
to conduct evaluations of the Association’s storm drains, bridges and structures, and marina facilities. These studies
determined the conditions as well as the estimated future costs of major repairs and replacements for these items. The
studies estimated that future repairs will extend the useful lives of the storm drains by 80 years; community path/trail
bridges by 30 years; road bridges by between 50-80 years; and the administration and marina facilities by between 7-50
years. Further reviews will be conducted on the storm drains in 2015, to determine changes, if any, to the schedule
for repairs and replacements.
Equipment Components - Major capital equipment is defined as those items costing $40,000 or more. Major capital
equipment includes a telecommunications system, video monitoring system, vacuum jetter truck, backhoe, front-end
loader, street sweepers, automatic gates at entrances, and forklifts. The studies estimated major equipment components
had useful lives that ranged from 6-15 years.
Road and Trail Resurfacing Components - In 2001, the Association conducted a study to determine the physical and
operating conditions of, and estimated future costs of major repair and replacements for, the road and trail systems. The
study estimated that the roads had useful lives of 15-25 years, and the trails from 10-20 years, depending on the type
of root barrier used and whether the trail is concrete or asphalt. Again, in 2011, engineering firms were contracted to
evaluate the estimated repairs and useful remaining lives of these assets.
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Note 7 - Interfund Borrowing

Until December 31, 2013, the Marina operated through an enterprise fund where revenues from fees for goods and
services were used to support the operations. In September 2013, the Board of Directors approved a strategic plan
where the Marinas became a consolidated, community amenity, rather than an internally separate entity. As a result,
capital replacements at the Marinas are treated the same as for all other departments, such as Public Works and
Security. This approach supports the 2013 community survey findings that 94% of respondents agreed that “The
Landings’ Marinas and surrounding areas benefit all property owners” and that 95% of respondents are satisfied with
the Marinas.
One result of this transition is the elimination of the Marinas’ interfund loans as of December 31, 2013. The total
amount of the interfund loans elimination was $1,416,830.
In 2005, the Marinas borrowed a total of $1,377,000 from the Operating Fund, primarily to finance the seawall
replacement at Landings Harbor. At the time of elimination, December 31, 2013, a total of $648,091 remained
outstanding.
In 2009, the Marinas borrowed $298,000 from the Reserve Fund to pay for the purchase of a dredge used at Landings
Harbor. At the time of elimination, December 31, 2013, a total of $122,048 remained outstanding.
In 2010, the Marinas borrowed $214,006 from the Reserve Fund to pay for the purchase of a negative lift used at
Landings Harbor. At the time of elimination, December 31, 2013, a total of $175,718 remained outstanding.
In 2010, the Marinas borrowed $67,244 from the Reserve Fund to pay for a tarmac extension at Landings Harbor. At
the time of elimination, December 31, 2013, a total of $60,570 remained outstanding.
In 2010, the Delegal Fixed Pier was renovated at a total cost of $893,845. The Marinas’ share of the project cost,
$251,605, was borrowed from the Reserve Fund. At the time of elimination, December 31, 2013, a total of $235,225
remained outstanding.
In 2012, the Association’s Capital Reserve Fund paid off the SunTrust acquisition loan early for the Marinas, and a
new interfund loan was established between the Marinas and the Capital Reserve Fund. At the time of elimination,
December 31, 2013, a total of $175,178 remained outstanding.

Note 8 - Pension Plan

The Association and the Company each maintain 401(k) retirement plans for eligible employees who are age 18 or
older. Employees may contribute annually up to the lesser of 20% of their salaries or $17,500 for each of the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Both plans provide an employer match of 100% of the first 4% of the salary
deferred by an employee, as well as a discretionary contribution.
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Association’s contributions amounted to $189,315 and $220,406,
respectively, into the 401(k) plan. Expenses for the Company amounted to $17,122 and $33,770 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 9 - Income Taxes

The Association’s and the Company’s income taxes are determined under the asset and liability approach described in
the Income Tax topic of the Codification. The Association and the Company adhered to guidance issued by the FASB
with respect to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more
likely than not” that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed
to occur. Once the threshold is met, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest amount of tax
benefit likely realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit is
recorded.
The Association and the Company are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of the state of Georgia.
The Association and the Company no longer are subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2011.
The Association and the Company do not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly
in the next 12 months. If incurred, the Association and the Company would recognize interest and penalties related to
unrecognizable tax benefits in interest expense. The Association and the Company did not record interest or penalties
related to income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
Association - The Association is classified as a nonexempt membership organization for both federal and state
income tax purposes for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. It does not qualify as an exempt organization.
The Association is subject to specific rulings and regulations applicable to nonexempt membership organizations. In
general, the Association is required to separate its taxable income and deductions into membership, non-membership,
and capital transactions. For federal tax purposes, the Association is taxed on all net income from non-membership
activities, reduced only by losses from non-membership activities. Non-membership income may not be offset by
membership losses, and any excess membership deductions may be carried forward only to offset membership income
of future tax periods. Any net membership income not applied to the subsequent tax year is subject to taxation. The
Association files Form 1120, which has graduated rates of 15% to 39% that are applied to net taxable income.
For federal income tax purposes, a net operating loss (NOL) of approximately $304,000 will be carried forward to
offset taxable income of the Association in future years and will begin to expire in 2029. This NOL includes $25,000
and $279,000 related to 2014 and prior years, respectively. For state income tax purposes, an NOL of approximately
$597,000 will be carried forward to offset taxable income in future years. This NOL includes $25,000 related to
2014, and $572,000 related to prior years. This NOL will begin to expire in 2028. A corresponding deferred tax asset
of $109,000 has been recorded for the potential NOL carryforward benefit, and a valuation allowance has been
established for the full amount, as shown below:

Long-term deferred tax asset:
Federal NOL deferred asset
$ 73,000
State NOL deferred asset		 36,000
		 109,000
Less valuation allowance for NOL assets

(109,000)		
$
-
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Company - The Company elected a C-Corporation status for income tax purposes. The provision for income taxes
includes current federal and state income taxes and deferred taxes arising from temporary differences between income
for financial reporting and income tax purposes. Deferred taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and the amounts for income tax purposes.
At December 31, 2014, the Company had a long-term net deferred tax asset and a short-term deferred tax liability.
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax balances as of December 31, 2014 are as follows:
Long-term deferred tax asset:
Federal NOL deferred asset
$ 89,000
State NOL deferred asset		 42,000
Depreciation difference		 (16,000)
$ 115,000
Current deferred tax liability:
Depreciation difference

$

4,500

The Company’s income tax benefit shown on the statement of income consists of the following components:
Current tax expense
$
Deferred tax expense		 35,000
$ 35,000

For federal income tax purposes, a carried forward NOL of approximately $123,000 was utilized in 2014. Approximately
$261,000 remains to be carried forward to offset taxable income of the Company in future years and will begin to
expire in 2030. This NOL includes $176,000 and $85,000 related to 2013 and prior years, respectively. For state income
tax purposes, a carried forward NOL of approximately $110,000 was utilized in 2014. Approximately, $706,000 will be
carried forward to offset taxable income in future years. This NOL includes $176,000 related to 2013, and $530,000
related to prior years. This NOL will begin to expire in 2029. A related deferred tax asset of $131,000 has been
recorded.

Note 10 - Legal Matters

The prospect that the following claims will result in an outcome unfavorable to the Association is remote. Management
believes that the resolution of these matters will not have an adverse impact on the financial statements. No provisions
for these matters have been made in the accompanying financial statements.
A property owner has a pending counterclaim for damages due to alleged trespass by the Association. The Association
does not believe a result unfavorable to the operation of the Association will occur, and the Association will vigorously
defend the counterclaim.
The Association filed suit against a property owner seeking to declare property owned by him a nuisance. In his
answer to the complaint, the owner filed a counterclaim seeking expenses of litigation. The matter has been delayed
by a Bankruptcy filing and by the filing of a Declaratory Judgment proceeding to establish ownership in the property,
which subsequently confirmed ownership by the property owner on January 7, 2015. Although this counterclaim has
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been filed, the Association does not believe a result unfavorable to its operation will occur, and the Association will
vigorously defend the allegations set forth in the counterclaim.
A property owner filed a claim for personal injuries, contending that she was injured by debris allowed to accumulate
on a community path owned by the Association and as a result, she was thrown off her bicycle and sustained personal
injuries. This matter has been referred to the insurance carrier for the Association, and it is being defended as a matter
of no liability. The Association does not believe a result unfavorable to the operation of the Association will occur as
a result of this litigation, and the complaint will be vigorously defended by insurance counsel.
A lawsuit was filed in January 2012 against the Company alleging a financial loss stemming from a conflict of interest
with an individual real estate broker utilized by the Company in a particular real estate transaction. In September 2014,
the Company received a favorable outcome in trial court. The plaintiffs have filed an appeal. While the outcome of
the appeal cannot be predicted with any certainty, the likelihood of a favorable outcome is not remote. The Company
is contesting this lawsuit vigorously.

Note 11 - Lines Of Credit

The Association has a secured $5,000,000 line of credit agreement with SunTrust Bank, bearing interest at 2.8%
percent over the one-month LIBOR rate, with a floor of 3%. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, no balance was
outstanding under this agreement.
The Company maintains a $330,000 line-of-credit agreement with SunTrust Bank bearing interest at 2.8% over the
one-month LIBOR rate with a floor of 3%. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, no balance was outstanding under this
agreement.
The Association maintains a $500,000 credit limit with SunTrust Bankcard, N.A. bearing interest at 0.0%. At December
31, 2014 and 2013, $67,372 and $104,459, respectively, were outstanding balances on the credit card.
The Company maintains a $41,000 credit limit with SunTrust Bankcard, N.A. bearing interest at 8.24%. At December
31, 2014 and 2013, $2,332 and $3,168, respectively, were outstanding balances on the credit card.

Note 12 - Related Party Transactions

The Association entered into a three-year contract with The Landings Club (“Club”), a separate membership entity
that owns and operates the golf, tennis, swimming, and physical fitness facilities. Under terms of the agreement, the
Association provides lagoon maintenance and security services. The services amounted to $210,686 and $213,970 in
2014 and 2013, respectively.
The Company paid $22,192 and $0 to the Club towards joint marketing efforts and lawn care during the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Club paid $23,667 and $25,271, respectively, to the Company for
marketing consulting services during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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Note 13 - Commitments

The Company leases office equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in various years through 2018.
The Company incurred rental expense relating to operating leases of $5,296 and $3,792 for the years ended December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Minimum annual lease payments are as follows:
For the year ending
December 31,
2015
$ 6,800
2016		6,800
2017		6,800
2018		5,515
Thereafter		
		
$ 25,915

The Association has engaged ValleyCrest Landscape Maintenance to provide landscaping and mowing services to the
Association, under a three-year contract. This contract was renewed in 2011, for the years 2012-2014. The contract
was again renewed in 2014, for the years 2015-2018.
The annual payments under this agreement are as follows:
For the year ending
December 31,
2015
$1,033,427
2016		1,043,761
2017		1,054,095
2018		1,064,429
Thereafter		
		
$4,195,712
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Supplementary Information on Major Repairs & Replacements
The Association’s Board of Directors authorized a study in 2001 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the
replacement costs of the storm drain, flood water control, road, trail, and bridge components of common property,
as well as the marina facilities. In 2011, engineering firms conducted studies to update the valuations and estimated
useful lives of these components, as described in Note 6.
Other common property and major equipment components are reviewed annually by the Public Works Committee and
staff. In 2011, the Association engaged a Reserves Specialist to provide review of the Reserve balance methodology
and valuations. The Reserves Specialist confirmed the methodology, and this information was reviewed with the
Association’s Reserves Subcommittee.
The following information is based on the 2011 reviews and a 2011 insurance appraisal review, as well as staff reviews
and knowledge, and presents significant information about the components of common property. Amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.
Per the Association’s funding formula, the Reserve Fund includes the maximum property insurance deductible, as well
as replacement costs of critical assets not covered by insurance.
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Components

Estimated Remaining
Useful Life (Years)

Estimated Current Replacement/
Repair Cost

Administration Facilities
1 to 19
$241,672
Association Signage
6 to 19
224,700
Automatic Gates
1 to 14
702,372
Backhoe
1
90,000
Cart Paths/Trails
1 to 10
3,849,296
Delegal Structure
29 to 30
929,605
Dock Boxes
6 to 7
30,000
Dock Pilings
3
40,000
Field/Park Rehabilitation
4
40,000
Floating Docks
1 to 7
1,778,000
Forklifts
1 to 3
531,006
Front-end Loader
3
50,000
Fuel Tanks
7
32,000
Gangways
7
23,000
Gate Facilities
25 to 29
147,000
Gate Irrigation and Drainage Systems
1 to 17
279,000
Harbor Dredge
3
298,000
Harbor Dry Stack Storage
1
2,200,000
Harbor Electrical Transformer
20
40,000
Harbor Seawall
20
1,300,000
Harbor Tarmac
6 to 25
270,000
IT Equipment
1 to 7
312,210
Lagoon Dikes and Structures
1 to 39
2,534,540
Marsh Tower and Observation
9
150,000
Other Infrastructure Components
1 to 31
4,116,845
Phone System
1
50,000
Public Works Facilities
1 to 6
178,000
Road Bridges
5 to 51
3,776,000
Roads
1 to 20
13,270,095
Storm Drain Pipes
15 to 65
38,049,695
Street Sweepers
4 to 6
220,000
Vacuum Jetter Truck
1
150,000
		$75,888,036
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December 31, 2014
Operating

Marina

Total Operating

December 31, 2013

Reserve
Funds

Total

Operating

Reserve
Funds

Marina

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & money market accounts

$

Cash held in escrow

1,881,468

$

580,400

$

306,285

Balance Sheets

4,672,687

$

7,134,555

$

1,623,043

306,285

271,925

$

428,537

$

4,508,213

$

6,559,793
271,925

2,187,753

580,400

2,768,153

4,672,687

7,440,840

1,894,968

-

1,500,000

1,500,000

100,000

10,589

24,576

35,165

35,165

35,236

21,028

56,264

38,490

38,490

38,490

3,209

33,315

36,524

Inventories
Prepaid insurance & other

$

306,285

Certificates of deposit
Other accounts receivable

2,461,868

428,537

4,508,213

6,831,718

1,250,000

1,350,000

122,106

77,082

199,188

199,188

77,401

64,729

Total Current Assets

2,320,448

720,548

3,040,996

6,172,687

9,213,683

2,110,814

547,609

5,758,213

8,416,636

142,130

Property, Plant & Equipment, net

3,606,144

1,588,407

5,194,551

272,475

5,467,026

3,398,622

1,751,494

135,708

5,285,824

-

-

100

5,893,921

$ 13,702,560

Other Assets
Investment in subsidiary

100

Total Other Assets
TOTAL

100

100

-

100

100

100

-

100

100

$ 14,680,809

$

5,509,536

$

2,299,103

$

$

303,742

$

54,825

$

5,926,692

$

2,308,955

$

8,235,647

$

6,445,162

$

189,586

$

54,826

$

244,412

$

5,000

100
$

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Escrow balances & deposits
Accrued payroll & taxes withheld

3,340

3,340

4,875

306,285

306,285

306,285

271,925

138,341

Total Current Liabilities

249,412

3,340

138,341

$

2,876

358,567
7,751
271,925

138,341

117,050

637,552

54,826

692,378

5,000

697,378

697,592

57,701

117,050

5,289,140

2,254,129

7,543,269

6,440,162

13,983,431

4,811,944

2,241,402

5,289,140

2,254,129

7,543,269

6,440,162

13,983,431

4,811,944

2,241,402

6,445,162

$ 14,680,809

-

755,293

5,893,921

12,947,267

Equity
Members' equity
Total Equity
TOTAL

$

5,926,692

$

2,308,955

$

8,235,647

$

$

5,509,536

$

2,299,103

$
$

5,893,921

12,947,267

5,893,921

$ 13,702,560

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
1 - Allowance for doubtful accounts was $15,400 and $18,800 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Year ended December 31, 2014

Statements of Revenues and Expenses and
Changes in Members’ Equity

Operating

Total
Operating

Marina

Year ended December 31, 2013

Reserve
Funds

Total

Operating

Reserve
Funds

Marina

Total

Revenues
Assessments

$ 5,257,418

Marina

$
$ 1,454,358

5,257,418

$

1,921,830

$

7,179,248

1,454,358

1,454,358

$

4,974,880

$
$

1,873,020

$

1,439,059

6,847,900
1,439,059

Vehicle registration

768,215

768,215

768,215

690,200

690,200

Service agreements

224,544

224,544

224,544

264,287

264,287

96,622

96,622

96,622

105,956

105,956

Architectural review fees
Interest earned
Telecommunications lease
Other
Total

886

886

87,526

87,526

371,064
6,806,275

4,450

371,064
1,454,358

8,260,633

1,926,280

5,336

10,914

87,526

118,275

371,064

350,103

10,186,913

6,514,615

1,451,364

1,420,861

3,920,323

3,135,282

19,498

30,412
118,275
350,103

1,439,059

1,892,518

9,846,192

Expenses
Community services

1,451,364

Public works

3,076,952

Marina
General & administrative
Income tax expense

1,451,364
3,076,952
1,278,546

1,909,387

1,278,546

1,909,387

1,909,387

3,745,468
1,222,041

1,738,917

1,738,917

3,080

2,500

-

2,500

1,278,546

7,719,329

843,371

8,562,700

6,297,560

1,222,041

610,186

8,129,787

Excess of revenues

365,492

175,812

541,304

1,082,909

1,624,213

217,055

217,018

1,282,332

1,716,405

Depreciation

419,964

168,085

588,049

588,049

464,281

156,533

(247,226)

60,485

1,282,332

1,095,591

764,087

5,982,971

11,851,676

Net (expenses) revenues
Equity, January 1
Transfers
Interfund borrowing elimination
Equity, December 31

(54,472)

3,080

610,186
1,222,041

6,440,783

Total

3,080

843,371

1,278,546

1,420,861

7,727

(46,745)

4,811,944

2,241,402

7,053,346

531,668

5,000

536,668

-

-

-

$ 5,289,140

$ 2,254,129

$

7,543,269

1,082,909

1,036,164

5,893,921

12,947,267

(536,668)
$

6,440,162

5,104,618

-

1,371,382

-

(1,416,830)

$ 13,983,431

$

4,811,944

620,814

-

(1,371,382)

1,416,830
$

2,241,402

-

$

5,893,921

$

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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12,947,267

December 31, 2014
Operating

Total
Operating

Marinas

December 31, 2013

Reserve
Funds

Total

Operating

Marinas

Reserve

Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues (under) over expenses

$

(54,472) $

7,727

$

(46,745) $

1,082,909

$

1,036,164

$

(247,226) $

60,485

$

1,282,332

$

1,095,591

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues (under) over
expenses to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Statements of Cash Flows

Depreciation

168,085

588,049

588,049

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets

419,964
(4,216)

13,642

9,426

9,426

Provision for doubtful accounts

(1,902)

(1,495)

(3,397)

(3,397)

(15,254)

(2,169)

Decrease (increase) in other receivables

26,549

(2,053)

24,496

24,496

(3,208)

11,762

8,554

3,209

(5,175)

(1,966)

(1,966)

(712)

15,183

14,471

(44,705)

(12,353)

Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable & accrued expenses

(114,156)

1

464,281

(57,058)

(57,058)

(18,586)

(14,841)

(33,427)

(114,155)

110,224

(9,055)

101,169

34,360

34,360

34,360

132,393

21,291

21,291

21,291

8,865

Decrease in deferred revenues

(1,535)

(4,411)

(4,411)

(1,325)

531,668

5,000

536,668

(536,668)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

816,055

170,503

986,558

546,241

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures

(32,045)

(18,640)

(50,685)

(735,512)

Proceeds from capital asset disposals
Capital asset transfers

12,520

12,520

(603,745)

(603,745)

Proceeds from sale of certificates of deposit
Maturity (purchase) of certificates of deposit

100,000

100,000

(523,270)

(18,640)

(541,910)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund receivable/payable elimination
Receipts (repayments) under interfund long-term agreements
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

$

1,250,745

(1,416,830)

166,085

-

1,680,197

(1,230,084)

1,448,417

1,898,530

(786,197)

(10,722)

603,745

-

1,250,000

1,250,000

(1,500,000)

(1,400,000)

(381,767)

(923,677)

46,000
(590,437)

-

-

(648,098)

-

-

24,975
(623,123)

-

292,785

151,863

444,648

164,474

609,122

466,637

1,894,968

428,537

2,323,505

4,508,213

6,831,718

1,428,331

2,768,153

(703,307)

(829,084)
-

-

$

(115,055)

(625,715)

-

580,400

(32,477)

-

-

$

8,865
(31,152)

1,532,799

-

2,187,753

132,393

12,520

-

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities

(17,423)

(114,155)

Increase in accrued payroll & taxes withheld
Transfers from (to) other funds

620,814
-

Increase in escrow balances & deposits

(2,876)

156,533

$

4,672,687

$

7,440,840

$

1,894,968

(115,055)

(139,315)
1,277,515
(67,624)
496,161
428,537

-

1,500,000

1,500,000

(1,250,000)

(1,204,000)

172,408

1,416,830

$

625,715

$

(533,084)

(768,732)

-

114,340

-

(654,392)

-

966,433

1,365,446

3,541,780

5,466,272

4,508,213

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
No cash was paid during either year for interest expense or income taxes.
NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

6,831,718
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